2005 BRAC COMMISSION REGIONAL HEARINGS

MONDAY, AUGUST 8, 2005

1:06 P.M.

MONTEREY MARRIOTT HOT
350 CALLE PRINCIPAL

MONTEREY, CALIFORNIA 940

STATES TES YING

CALIFOR) «Q \LASKA, ) COLORADO

ISSTIONERS:
OMMISSIONER JAMES BILBRAY
COMMISSIONER PHILIP COYLE
COMMISSIONER HAROLD GEHMAN
COMMISSIONER JAMES HANSEN
PRESIDING COMMISSIONER:

COMMISSIONER PHILIP COYLE

ACTING CHAIRMAN COYLE: Good afternoon, I'm



Commissioner Philip Coyle and I will chair this Regional
Hearing of the Defense Base Closure and Realignment
Commission. I'm also pleased to be joined by my fellow
Commissioners Bilbray, Gehman and Hansen for today's
session.

We've had wonderful support from the

Monterey for this hearing. And I want to egpecial

Congressman Sam Farr, who was very help . co e, the
Honorable Leon Panetta, City Manager ed urer, and Mayor
Dan Albert. They all have just made s vis guite

special.

On July 19th, this'‘Commission voted to consider

closur

ur job as an independent commission is to render
a fair gment on the Secretary of Defense's
recommendations. In a limited number of cases, we cannot
make that fair assessment without first being able to make

direct comparisons between installations that are part of

the Secretary's recommendations and similar installations



that were not included in the May 13th recommendation list.
We continue to examine all of the proposed closure
and realignment recommendations, and measure them against

the criteria for military value set forth in law, especially

the need for surge manning and for homeland securi But

please be assured we are not conducting this re

exercise in sterile cost accounting. This mmiss
committed to committing a clear-eyed readity eck at we
know will not only shape our militar ch for
decades to come, but will also ha o) ound effects on our

communities and on the people o b g communities to
life.

We are commit b keeping our deliberations and
decisions devoid of i 3 d ensuring that the people

e BRAC proposals will have,

d public hearings, a chance to

methodology and assumptions behind them.
like to take this opportunity to thank the

f involved citizens who have already contacted
the Com sion and shared with us their thoughts, concerns
and suggestions about the base realignment and closure
process. Unfortunately the volume of correspondence we've

received has made it impossible for us to respond directly

to each one of you in the short time in which the Commission



must complete its mission.

But we want everyone to know the public inputs we
received are appreciated and are taken into consideration as
part of our review process. And while everyone in this room

will not have an opportunity to speak today, every.piece of

correspondence received by the Commission will hart
of our permanent public record as appropriate.
We've been visiting bases all er e c try,
and here in California, commissioner N the Navy
Broadway Complex, the Navy Postgr School and the
Defense Language Institute; r the Buckley

ua
o
Annex DFAS site, and in Alaska, Ga

e na Forward Operating

Location. During these the Commission has

heard from installa s, elected officials and
community groups. ring will provide statements
for ese installations. We welcome

all nd look forward to your testimony.

the i ation of the oath required by the Base Closure
and i The ocath will be administered by
Mr. Dan whig, the Commission's designated federal officer.
MR. COWHIG: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Gentlemen, will you please raise your right-hand?

(The Witnesses were sworn.)



STATE OF CALIFORNIA
ACTING CHAIRMAN COYLE: Mr. Molinari, I think
you're going to kick this off?

MR. MOLINARI: Thank you, Mr. Chairman and

members. On behalf of Senator Diane Feinstein and Senator

Barbara Boxer, I would like to welcome the Comm

California.
As you know, both Senators me it hai
Principi in Washington two weeks ago, and a ult of
that, Chairman Principi allowed ug to o bring a video
that we'd like to have offere nto ord.
e
of

S
SENATOR FEINSTEIN: ari

(
‘ii-rs
s

t
by Videotape) .

Mr. Chairman, e BRAC Commission, I

swear and affirm th he ony that I'm about to give
will be accurate an plete to the best of my knowledge
and belief.

ring is a key step in the BRAC process.

rmine whether three California military
installati are realigned or closed: The Naval

Pos School, the Defense Language Institute, and the

Let me begin with the Naval Postgraduate School
and the Defense Language Institute. I'd like to tell you
why I believe it would be a huge mistake to lose these two

tremendous assets.



As a member of the Senate Intelligence Committee,
I know that there are those who would do this nation great
harm. I know that the only way to prevent that harm is
through intelligence and the ability to find them before
they attack us.

Consider what the Commander of our Ce

Command, General John Abizaid said before agHo tee
last year. Let me quote, "What will win e bal war on
terrorism will be people that can cro€s th ul al divide,

reach out to those who want our help igure out how to

make that that happen. So we dgnor he fense Language

Institute and other institution f military education at

our own peril," end gquo
re vital. They have

egic value. The Naval
nstance, provides high level
ilitary officers. It offers many of

as civilian institutions, but with a major

on i strategy and military needs. The students
receive top-notch education, they develop invaluable
relationships, and they become better officers.

At the same time, the Defense Language Institute
adds significant value to our nation's military and

intelligence agencies. One of the great shortcomings of our



nation is the absence of speakers of Arabic, the absence of
people who understand the Muslim culture and religion. And
this language school produces the great bulk of Arabic

speakers in our nation. I know Senator Boxer will go into

some detail about this in her remarks. So there i

critical defense mission that needs to be carri
both of these facilities are doing the job.
As a matter of fact, the Pent n' RAC

recommendations specifically did not #4nclu ei r of these

facilities. Rather, it pointed tg th alue of the

institutions, and said that, ning a world-
class educational facility a t of our military
will attract future
military leaders fr ries," end quote.

They alsgo Naval Postgraduate School the

highest military value ing of all military educational

institutiors re e some who acknowledge the military
at their functions could be privatized or
congoli but the fact is that closing these facilities
wou nywhere from $130 million to privatize and

f millions of dollars to move them completely to
Ohio. Many of the faculty would not move, so you would lose
a great deal of your human capital as well.

Now the Navy estimated that it would save $89

million by privatizing the school, but it's our belief that



the cost analysis of the Navy is not accurate. It fails to
take into account a number of significant factors. The Navy
based its savings figures on the cost of privatizing
education for only Navy and Marine students. The additional

cost of educating members of other service brancheg.and

foreign military officers is estimated to be $ a
year.

The $110 million in reimburse ts éarch
grants and educational contracts thats come e year,
that wasn't counted. The fact th i udents go
elsewhere, they'll spend thre o s mo s longer in

school, adding significantly“to e co of educating each

student. That wasn't c . So e belief is that there
would be substantialsaddi na osts incurred through
privatization.

And ¢onsider timeliness of making this move:

We're in the e of a war. Additionally, the Navy does

not ta ount the 2600 units of privately funded

signifi tly reduce the cost of living for faculty, staff,
and students.

Here's the bottom line. These institutions are
too valuable to be replaced, both in terms of financial cost

and the education they provide. 1It's my greatest hope that



they will not be closed or realigned.

Finally, let me say a word about the Navy Broadway
Complex. The complex serves as headquarters for Navy Region
Southwest, and there have been discussions for years about

moving the headquarters to a more secure location

turning the site into a district of shops, res

parks and high-rise housing.

I believe, as does the City o an d the

ego
t

BRAC

Navy, that this issue can be resolvedfoutsi

process. And because of the complica ns of/transitioning
bases once closed by BRAC, I 1;& RAC actually
makes it more difficult. Wh like to do is offer my

t
help to see that the ne ions t settled as soon as
o

possible. And so I r both to the City of San
Diego and the Na

So in conclus let me thank you for the

opportunit tify today. I very much appreciate it.

And no urn this over to my friend and colleague,

NATOR BOXER: Mr. Chairman, the BRAC Commission,
ladies gentlemen, I swear and affirm that the testimony
that I'm about to give will be accurate and complete to the
best of my knowledge and belief.

Good afternoon, and welcome to beautiful Monterey.

Thank you for holding this extremely important hearing. I



trust that you will all leave today with a clear and
comprehensive understanding of why it is essential that no
action be taken to disrupt the continued work of the Naval
Postgraduate School or the Defense Language Institute.

Simply put, closing both of those institutions or

one of those institutions, or moving the facili
state would be extremely detrimental to our
security. Furthermore, I believe it wo 6énsible
to do so at a time when our nation's milit

our people

are facing unprecedented threats.

The Naval Postgradu c 1 currently

training future leaders to grea understand and respond to
the challenges of the 2 ntury, offering Master's

1 S security studies,

meland security -- the very

ind in the country. The faculty

civilian personnel in the world's most
difficu languages. There is no equivalent. Let me say
that again. There is no equivalent among our private and
public universities. 1In 2004, fewer than two dozen degrees

in Arabic were granted at all of our nation's private and

public universities combined, fewer than 24. Compare that



to the Defense Language Institute, which graduated 521
students from its Arabic program. That's about 25 times
more than that of all the other U.S. universities combined.

The Defense Language Institute also granted 157

degrees in Farsi, the official language of Iran. Public and

private universities did not even grant a singleé

Farsi. This is especially troubling at a time whe
national security of the U.S. is tied t he cce of our
efforts to engage the Muslim and Ara WN ant to win
we nt to
m

the war on terror. We do. And i we must do

more than simply pursue -- lisfen, ay this one more
time. We must win this war ror, ;and to do that, we
have to do more than si iew o military options.

We also m

e empower moderate Arabs and

o) ti

Muslims, enhance nd intelligence sharing,

strengthen counter-terr sm efforts, and work to vastly

improve th e U.S. of A. within the Arab and

impossi even speak the same language as the
peo engage and persuade.

Experts have suggested it would take 12 to 15
years to replicate the infrastructure at the Defense
Language Institute if it is moved elsewhere. We do not have
that much time on our side. Time is our enemy in this

fight. Navy Secretary Gordon Ingram recently said, quote,



"Professional military education is hugely important to us,
maybe more important than a lot of the equipment and a lot
of the other things we do."

Now, we all know we need the equipment, we

absolutely do. But his point is clear, and I cannot.echo

the sentiments of Secretary Ingram loudly enoug
believe that closing or relocating the Defe
Institute or Naval Postgraduate School 1d
irreparable harm to our national defefise a when we
should be working to strengthen o m ar efense and
nation's security.

I strongly urge the B Commission in the most --

in the most powerful wa ca o0 please take steps to

strengthen these insfituti hin Monterey.
I thank, vy or time and for your
consideration.

videotape statements.)

INARI: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, for

allowing:, theyvideo testimony, and if I may ask the

ACTING CHAIRMAN COYLE: Without objection, so
ordered.

MR. MOLINARI: And let me now introduce the
Cabinet Secretary for the State of California, the Honorable

Terry Tamminen.



SECRETARY TAMMINEN: Thank you very much.
Mr. Chairman and Commissioners, thank you for
allowing me to represent Governor Schwarzenegger today, who

regrets that prior commitments prevent him from attending in

person.
I ask that the Governor's entire letté ou,

dated August 8th, 2005 be included in the regcord. ith

your permission, I'll highlight a few o is mme from

that letter.
First, on behalf of the.Gov or and, indeed, all
Californians, welcome to the n at Last month, the

governor appeared before youtat ur public hearing in Los

Angeles and provided yo our prehensive statewide

report on the wvalue 's military bases. Let me
summarize the key. fimdings that report with you.

Number one, rovide unique and mission-critical

capabilitiés he military here in California. Two, we
are wo ly with you and with the Defense Department
nd strengthen those mission-critical
capabilities. Three, we are seeing the results of those
efforts ght here in Monterey and in San Diego where you
vigited last Friday and this morning.

Our report also notes that California has enormous
strengths and technological expertise and human capital.

These strengths support top research universities and the



defense industry throughout the state, and also provide the
support for our key military institutions of higher
learning, the Defense Language Institute and the Navy's
Postgraduate School.

The Defense Language Institute, or DLI, h vyear

trains thousands of military and intelligence
foreign language proficiency. After Septem

they shifted quickly to f£ill the gaps i

capability. And they did so far fastér th ublic or
private college or university cou h one

The faculty at DLI ig unm he nywhere. They
are dedicated to their mission, t th are also wedded to

living in and around Moz ey. We found this out when the

Department of Defen i ose DLI in 1993, to move it
to Arizona. Non ty would transfer, and it
would be nearly impossi to recruit new ones of that

caliber.

ifficulty in recruiting new faculty would
create hole in our national language training, and
all i would suffer. Any savings that might be created
would n matter if we lost the capability to operate in
foreign lands or handle the intelligence we intercept.

Then there's the Navy's Postgraduate School which
educates and trains graduate military students not just from

the Navy, but also from all branches of the service and from



dozens of foreign allied and friendly nations. The
Postgraduate School is not like any other graduate
university because it combines technical and military
disciplines in a truly unique, one-of-a-kind institution
that has taken decades to build.

The Postgraduate School also applies

that it incorporates. For example, they to t

developing unmanned aerial vehicle tech og olutions for

our ongoing war on terrorism. Becau of c ination of
this technology here in Monterey d available air and
sea test ranges down the coas £ C R rts, the

Postgraduate School was able“to ve quickly to help the war

fighters in the war on . No other school in America
offers that combinatdon o ec logy along with nearby
access to traini €s nges.

Moregver, mo the Postgraduate School would not

save money. efense Department's BRAC cost numbers

contai errors which will be detailed for you later
thi n and which Senator Feinstein alluded to as
wel

I would also like to provide our views on the
proposed move in San Diego. We agree with the Navy, the
Defense Department, and the City of Diego that the actions

to move from the Broadway complex to another Navy Center in

San Diego should be undertaken outside of the BRAC process,



through ongoing negotiations between the City of San Diego
and the Navy.

In closing, let me express why we so firmly
believe that the military is better off in California. We

have in this state the overall capability to provide. all of

the support needed, from vast unencroached trai

ranges, and the ideal weather to use them, outst
technology and academic support and ope in orces:
We ask that you consider t SN and
capabilities as you make your owngind ent/evaluations.

And we are confident that, in i om
accurate information, you wi ch t
the Department of Defen

On behalf

n
ison based on
s

ame conclusions as

1
Go no chwarzenegger, I want to

thank you again day's hearing in Monterey, for
ur facilities and to see for

yourself wha y have to offer, and for permitting

Now, please allow me to turn the microphone over
to the co-chair of California's BRAC Council, Monterey's
native son and a good friend of the Governor and everyone in
our state, the Honorable Leon Panetta.

LEON PANETTA: Mr. Chairman, I'm waiting for the



mike to go on. There we go.
Mr. Chairman and Members of the Commission, I want
to welcome you also to California, particularly to Monterey.
This is my hometown. I was born and raised here, and had
the honor of representing this area in the Congres

also particularly pleased to see my former colleag

Hansen and Jim Bilbray here in Monterey. Weg" welco .
We also welcome Phil Coyle and the rest t staff:
I would ask that my stat Q de rt of the

ement
record, and I would also ask that 1 er from Secretary of
State George Shultz also be m a of e record and I'd
like to summarize my testimony 1f,I could.

ACTING CHAIRM thout objection, so

ordered.
LEON PANE ornia, and particularly

Monterey, have a long h orical relationship with the

military tHa ba to, I think, June of 1770 with the

locati irst Presidio here in Monterey.
Wew have throughout the years supported a number of
com t range from Fort Ord and Hunter-Liggett to DLI
and Nav - Naval Postgraduate School, Fleet Numerical, the
Navy Research Lab, and others.

As you may know, the largest base closure that

took place in the last BRAC round took place right here with

the closure of Fort Ord. Fort Ord represented,



incidentally, about 25 percent of our local economy and we
lost about 22,000 civilian and military jobs. We've made
that transition, but I think it points out that this area

supports the military through good times and bad.

The purpose of the BRAC process, as I'm e you
are very familiar with -- and incidentally, I wan thank
you for your service. I know it's not easy You'
traveled a lot of distances. But we th 4 for
service.

As you know, the purposgl i try to do what we

s
can to streamline the existin r ru re in a way that

will improve the efficiency fectiveness of the

infrastructure that sup the military, and obviously, in

the end, to strengt ertainly don't want
anything that wo You're trying to strengthen
our national defense.

California, we have put together, because

of the our council that was made up of 11 flag

and bu issues. We reviewed all of our military assets.
I think what I've said about this area you could say for
California. California has been streamlined through the

BRAC process. Thirty percent of the bases closed came out

of California. In all of the BRAC rounds, we lost about



100,000 employees.

But the reality is that it left us with some very
valuable assets in terms of the military: Training and
testing, the ability to deploy to the Pacific; joint

training that goes on here. The partnerships with

education, industry and technology are all cruc
defense, and I think the Secretary of Defen basi
recognized those assets. So we would ur yO o a
recognize the important military assets th we ve

throughout the State of Californi

Let me speak specifi ly t issues that
you're looking at right here“in nterey. I'm very familiar
with them, going back t time
Army Intelligence, m er Congress, and as someone
involved, as Direct with budget issues.

There are som ommon misconceptions that always

come up in past BRAC rounds, they've come

ound, and I want to mention those

misgonc iops if I could.

umber one, there is an understandable, but a very
unfortu e tendency in the military branches to look at the
educational facilities and mission as second-class citizens.
It's just a reality. These are not weapons, these are not
tanks, they're not planes, they're not ships, and so they

obviously can't be important to the war fighter. There is



that kind of reaction to these kinds of educational
missions.

The reality I believe is that education and
training is not only the first weapon in peace, it is the

first weapon in war. You cannot successfully figh he wars

that we're fighting now in Irag and Afghanistan
the war on terrorism, if you don't have good intel
You can't have good intelligence withou 1 uage, ability
to understand what is being said, to_dinder nd e culture
that you're dealing with. That'swha e Defense Language

Institute teaches.

And you cannot win‘th ar on terrorism or these

N

other wars without an umn anding of the newest

technologies that w are, the constant research

you have to do o reconnaissance, on

targeting, and, the kin international understanding that

the Naval uate School provides.

misconception, you can simply privatize all
these r ibilities to the private sector. The reality
se assets don't exist in the private sector. They
hey're not there. The Defense Language Institute,
as you've heard, teaches the toughest languages that we know
of, Arabic, Mandarin, Farsi, Korean. Eleven hundred faculty

members, 98 percent of which are native speakers. They

don't have a lot of fancy degrees, but they know their



language and they know their culture. They provide an
intense three to six month course. It's total immersion.
They develop a high level of proficiency, and they move

those soldiers out onto the battlefield with that kind of

proficiency.

You can't do that in a university. a
member is the President's Commission of Languages,
have to tell you, language training in o u ersities is a

national scandal. That was the concléision t report
that was issued by that Commissio

Same thing is true h av Postgraduate
School. Outstanding faculty“-- 's n just because

;% g and astronautics and

s the fact that they know

they're trained in engin

ledge to fighting a war and
focus on the war on ter i . They teach students from

e military, they teach foreign military

students. t me tell you, those students, when they go
bac countries, are invaluable in terms of our

abi y to establish relations abroad with them.

Let me quote from Secretary Shultz, just one
quote: "No other school, including Stanford, could
reasonably replicate what goes on at the Naval Postgraduate
School, " unquote.

The last point I want to make -- it's been



mentioned here also -- is that the COBRA models, while they
project savings, do not take the time to really look at the
real cost. Most universities, if they're going to have to
adjust their curriculum to meet military needs, you've got
to go through a worse bureaucracy in universities n you

have to in the federal government.

The reality is, most defense -- m

t
and their Senate coalitions can be a barzier '
get these changes made, so you're goi gN ugh
challenges there. Tuitions are more ensive. Housing
f

cost would be more expensive, v kly, you can't
replicate the performance of“th acul that we currently
have.

Let me -- Mavin ai hat, let me say one thing.
That's not to sa n' hieve savings, and I know
that's what yo on. You can achieve savings.
You can achieyve i in place the way we've done at DLI.

vices, they've provided 41 to almost 49
pergent vings because of services they provide. Same
thi ppen at the Navy Postgraduate School. And very
frankly, 1f you wanted to unify the commands into a defense
system, I think you might be able to achieve even an
additional savings by virtue of doing that. But do that in
place. Do that where they're at right here.

General Abizaid and Secretary Shultz and the



others have been quoted. I think the key point is that we
cannot win the war on terrorism without the missions that
are performed by DLI and the Navy Postgraduate School.

As to the Broadway Complex, just very briefly,

you've pointed out that savings could be achieved.

commend you for doing that, but I think those sé

best be achieved if you let the Defense Department he
Navy Department negotiate those savings @ith e c unity.

Thank you for your service /£o0 th ation, both
past and present. I have every confi ce you'll do what's
right for California and the& d national

security.

ACTING CHAIRM ank you, Mr. Panetta,

Secretary Tamminen olinari. I'm not sure,

Secretary Tammin u're going to be able to stay

for the next panels, bu ust in case you are not, I would
ask that i ny questions for the Secretary before

he may ave? Any questions?

(No response.)
ACTING CHAIRMAN COYLE: Thank you very much, and
we'll take the next panel.

Thank you, gentlemen. Congressman Farr, are you
leading off this panel?

CONGRESSMAN FARR: I'm leading off this panel.



Yes, I am.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COYLE: Thank you.

CONGRESSMAN FARR: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and
welcome to Monterey. It's been a delight to have the

commissioners here, and I'm so glad to see my forme

colleagues, Jim Bilbray and Jim Hansen. And I'
miss you in Washington.

I have a formal statement for e ord, . and I
would like to insert it in the recor 1% ssion will
allow it.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COY :& ion, so ordered.
CONGRESSMAN FARR: you Hopefully, in the

short time that you had

, you've gotten a good
sense of how they'resconn oth the Navy Postgraduate
School and Defen ag stitute, with our local

community, and|the goo al of good military wvalue that

both of these s ols /bring to our nation's defense and to
nation
because the resources draw upon this great

com i Monterey -- in other words, it's location,
location, location -- I think you see that these schools are
indeed mission-oriented, are indeed not duplicative of other
military installations in the country. And what I'd like to

point out is that they can't be done anywhere else.

So why here in Monterey? The fact that Monterey



is an integral part of the Naval Postgraduate School and the
DLI, the City of Monterey, and the greater sum of its
individual parts. If you took those away from here, you

would have less than the whole. You may order the military

students to move, you could order the military sta to
move, but you cannot order the civilian facultyio
civilian staff or other workers to move, orgtranspo e
buildings or the facilities overnight.

Moving the Naval Postgraduate Sc 1 the
Defense Language Institute is a mifsno because you're not

moving them. You're dismantli h an rying to

reconstruct them elsewhere, c that not all the pieces

are there when you rebui So that's the first reason of,
why Monterey?
Then vy tellectual capacity of

Monterey. It's unparal ed in the U.S. The Naval

Postgraduate 1l a the DLI faculty has come from all
over t teach and do research. The faculty has a
deep 1 ion with 23 other institutions of higher
edu i round the Monterey Bay, and even more so is
connect just north of here to Silicon Valley.

These informal partners enhance the educational
experience of the students at Naval Postgraduate School and

DLI, and no other location in the United States affords this

kind of one-stop shopping to brain power. In addition, in



the case of DLI, the faculty, as you saw this morning, are
native-born speakers, coming from all over the world.

To contemplate dismantling NPS or DLI is to
acknowledge that the whole -- a whole new faculty will have

to be recruited, will have to be trained and have be

accomplish. You don't just stand up a full
research university overnight, especial

military culture and military relevan€e.

that takes decades to assemble. d over,50 years,
Monterey has been part and pact o} he vestment that has
been made in these schools as p ier stitutions. If NPS

and DLI is moved, the be s of that investment will be
lost. That is the cond for, why Monterey?
This loca so ers key military jointness.

Students at NP8 and DL n, and do, train in non-academic

military exXexci to. the south of us, at Fort Hunter-
Ligget a 168,000-acre training base in southern
Montere as well as next door at Camp Roberts, which
onterey County and part in San Luis Obispo
County. e also have, at the former Fort Ord, a mount, and
we will soon have new, state-of-the-art mount facilities at
Fort Hunter-Liggett.

Besides access to other military installations for

field training, Monterey also provides some of the last --



the last remaining uninterrupted airspace over the Los
Padres National Forest and over the ocean. There is easy
access to the open ocean for sea experience and battle
readiness training, which was evident in the urban war games

and the beach assaults exercise run by the Navy in _Monterey

just a few short years ago. Where else in Ame
have this kind of close proximity to facili
space of such varied nature, combined wi
academic research and training? Nowhére.
reason for why Monterey.

I know it's been re e YO hat these schools

scored well in the military wal especially Naval

Postgraduate School, whi ored the highest of all. I

believe, for brief a hared with you, that shows

that there is - S a tual Monterey location that

contributes to/ this hig ilitary score. It's not just
thing.

y, and only Monterey, is where all the U.S.
linguis trained. The services and DOD both train

her telligence community trains here. But Monterey
is not y where the linguists learn languages. It is
where native language speakers learn to teach languages to
our military. It is especially important for you to know

that the Monterey institute of International Studies is the

top school in the United States for translation and



interpretation.

DLI uses Monterey Institute of International
Studies to train its language-speaking experts to be
language teaching experts. The close collaboration between

DLI and MIIS exists here in Monterey. It doesn't exist

elsewhere because MIIS doesn't exist elsewhere
relationship cannot be replicated in any ot So

if you move or privatize DLI, you dimini

N A
provide the kind of military value i as ug to DOD and
to the country for years, all because took it out of
Monterey. That's the fourth r o w Monterey?

Finally, the Naval“Po raduate School performs

unprecedented research 1 commands on demand, and

particularly for fi There is no A76 review
process, there a his is, I-need-to-know-it-now-

to-complete-mytmission- -to-protect-my-troops kind of

vy Postgraduate School does it. Such

immedi t exist in private schools, nor does it --

res . Harvard, Yale, U.C. Berkeley and Stanford
are all rld-class institutions, but can anybody point to a
military mission dedicated to these universities? NPS is
all about military mission dedication.

I'd like to share with you an e-mail. It is an e-

mail sent by Army Major Michael Aldeburgh to Dean Bob Ord at



the Naval Postgraduate School, and it was send just this
last July. It reads, "Dean Ord, my name is Major Michael
Adelburgh. I graduated in March 2005 from the Western
European Regional Security Studies. Currently I'm serving

in Afghanistan in the Office of Security Cooperation helping

to rebuild and reform the country's security seé
to personally thank you and the faculty forsthe out
education I received at Naval Postgradu S ol

prepared me for this work. Without

e erience
I

e uni
that the Naval Postgraduate Schoolk pr ded would be ill

equipped to perform my duties t£o an eg of proficiency."
Signed Major Michael Aldeberg, 1d Artillery.
The Naval Pos ate School provides the same
1

kind of mission relewance

research programs as you

saw in the schools t

When: DOD nee o improve its UVA fleet, it came

to the Nav te School. When the Department of
Homela i needed a specialized Master's degree
program ain first responders, it came to the Naval

Pos . When the U.S. Government needed
special d assistance in organizing and communicating after
the tsunami for its relief efforts, it came to the Naval
Postgraduate School. The school got a new broad-band

program up and running, specific to USGS's needs, on the

spot.



Last week, when the State Department needed an
exercise where, for the first time, the State Department,
USAID, military commanders, both foreign and domestic, along
with NGOs for the first time, international environmental --
nongovernmental organizations, needed to do a gaming of
post-conflict reconstruction, they came to the

Postgraduate School.

Unlike private civilian organigZati , N cannot
and does not turn away requests to d 1& op new
engineering. There does not exisg a dor in the U.S. that

at
i t

can duplicate what the Naval chool does in the

r
professional manner it does, e ti frame it does, or
to do it in the militar as they do. This is
where America's brai les. The Naval Postgraduate
School in Monterey, why Monterey.

I thank you our attention, and hope you will

consider s what I've said. Because it's not just the
fate o institutions that rest in your hands, or
the, imp on our local community, but I think it's
tru fety and the defense of the military's

intelle al prowess for the United States. 1Indeed,
Monterey is important to military readiness. It's important
to mission, and it cannot be duplicated anywhere else.

Thank you very much.

And now, Fred Meurer, the Assistant City Manager



of the City of Monterey wants to get into a brief discussion
of business matters.

MR. BEARD: As with the Air Force Colonel during
the site tour this morning, my electromagnetic field seems

to be interfering with my computer, so I'm going to

computer. So I will apologize in the transi
to ask for slide changes. First slide,

Also in your packet before
packet that looked like this. Th

slides as well as excerpts fro

affairs, and national s
concern, ranging fr hultz to Secretary Watkins,
the former CNO,

t president of the U.S. system

and so on expressing theif# concern about the idea of either
privatizin igning the schools here in Monterey.
Next s
is 1s the Monterey crescent of some 30-plus
pie tellectual capital that surround the
Postgra te School and provide additional capability to the
faculty of those two fine institutions. Next slide, please.
The Postgraduate School -- I shaped this briefing

thinking at the time that only two of the commissioners

would be on the site tour. So I will blow through these



slides rather rapidly where I know you've already heard --

all four of you have already heard the information.
Basically the Postgraduate School, while it's

called the Naval Postgraduate School, is really providing a

defense mission. It is educating officers from al our of

our services plus many of our allied nations ané
civilians. The key point that I hope you s t
is everything they do is totally focuse n
needs of the combatant commanders. ey a ta g care of
trying to win today's war and alsg tr g to take care and
make sure we're ready to win Orrow' s . Next slide,

please.

The Postgradus hool itself is about 1700

resident graduate s nt other 725 distance-learning
students. About %0 ce the student body comes from

the Department of the or the Marine Corps. A student

body that forgotten is about 49,000 short-course
students. at equates to approximately one hundred --
excuse 00 full-time equivalents, or essentially a

sec nt body that's often forgotten in people's

The school offers some 48 resident Master's and
Ph.D. programs. And again, some sample titles, a curriculum
that you're just not going to find in a civilian university.

The education is also projected overseas when it needs to



be, to some 100 countries through mobile training teams.
The curriculum, as is attested to in many of the

letters that you received, are just not available in public

or private institutions within the United States. The very

things that makes the Postgraduate School distincti are

the very things that make it absolutely essenti

combatant commander's success. Next slide, lease.

From a money point of view, i ec es e $76
million in direct appropriation. ThefSena S others
referred to the COBRA analysis. r that something was
wrong was when the COBRA anal s d b he Navy said that
they were going to save moremo than they were actually

e $76 million is

's actually for the students, some

That becomes important when you

Some 525 faculty provide this education, but in
actuality, there are only 242 tenured/tenure track faculty.
They are augmented by adjunct professors and so on to

minimize the costs associated with education.



Some ten percent of the faculty are active-duty
military. They come in with very, very strong academic
credentials. They would be respected instructors or
professors in any civilian university, but they also have

operational expertise from just coming back from t field.

And we do not use teaching assistants at the N
Postgraduate School. There are 466 staff members
support this academic faculty and anoth 18 erm

party military.

Another unique thing abgut ostgraduate School
is that there's no summer vac ) re. It is a year
round operation. A couple of w s off on the -- for the

Christmas holidays, but ally, ey are full up and

going four quarters t doesn't make any

difference when u t, can finish on time.

I'm product a military product. The Army

sent me to d £ a one-year course. It took me 18

months e it because of scheduling issues
associa ith not enough students for the class to go.
Tha oesn't happen at NPS. They come in and they get back
out to fleet in a hurry, they get back out to their
infantry divisions in a hurry. Next slide, please.

NPS is actually providing far more than a Master's

degree, and it's the "far more" that, again, very often is

forgotten by analysts who are looking at these schools for



comparability of potential contracting out. The first part
of the NPS mission is to take this poly sci major or
literature major and get them ready to take an advanced
degree -- a Master's or a Ph.D. -- in meteorology or

operations research, or some other engineering and ience

course, a course they would not even be admitteé

civilian university. So they have to do the skill
o

reconstruction first. Then they actual ha t ovide

the graduate level courses. Then th % o provide

the research topics and the profegsio enharicement courses
o

t
i
o

for them to not only provide combatant

commanders, but to complete wn litary needs. And
then finally, they provi fessional military
education courses.
So a stud s through NPS is actually
going to graduate with ost a hundred -- actually a little

rs academic credit as compared to

approxi hours in a typical Master's degree program.
And, tha cause they are taking such a heavy load each

qua roximately 64 units per year. Next slide,

Looking at the student body itself, it is a joint
student body working with a joint faculty dealing with the
nation's joint and combined issues. As you can see, the

membership of the student body comes from all of the



services plus a heavy contingent from the international
community. Next slide, please.

This summer, approximately 300 students were in
residence from 60 Allied nations. Many of these allied

students go on to become leaders of their armed forges or

leaders of their nations. The King of Jordan
graduate. Next slide, please.

Military value. I remember i ou irs earing,

I was watching it and I believe Chai P ci asked the

Secretary, "Why didn't you close nd he said
something to the effect, "We e ed a ton of money
by closing NPS," and then he“we on to say why the Navy
leadership and the Join fs and the Secretariat said no
to a Navy recommendation c . That was because of the

military value.

All you have ook at is the degrees offered and

look who i ring these degrees to rapidly understand
oing to find this academic curriculum focus
fense needs any other place in the United

Sta . t slide, please.

A great deal of what they do, you saw some of it
this morning, is done in a classified world. And again, if
you look at the projects and the degree, and who are they

supporting, improvised explosive devices, the single most

important thing a commander in Iraqg is dealing with today is



being worked on right now at NPS. Ad Hoc wireless networks
for PACOM, surveillance and target acquisition networks for
SOCOM, and so on. These are issues that are impacting our
ability to win the war on terrorism right now, and they're

being worked on today.

Again, during your tour, you saw some

projects that are underway in the classroomgat

Liggett, at Camp Roberts using our airs e i our

ocean. It's very hard to move our ai pa or r ocean
anywhere, and they are very, very4 lmp ant components what
we do at the Postgraduate Sch t de, please.

S

Every bit of the rese h i ocused on national

security. You saw the 1 training technologies and how

virtual training, o he games that our kids play

with are actuall S capabilities to improve the
efficiency of i in the military. You saw a set
think, all four services who were
workin in a very joint fashion dealing with a
degree information management.

rom what you saw today, you can be sure that the
informa n management that they are doing there is totally
different than the information management degree that
they're getting at Stanford this afternoon. That was

activities and projects focused on combatants' needs. Next

slide, please.



Some of the recent initiatives -- and again, it's
the responsiveness, it's the ability to turn on a dime.
It's the ability to not have to go to the Faculty Senate to
get permission to do this or that. This faculty, this

student body is totally focused on dealing with the.lissues

as they come up today. If you need an Iragi vodeg
authentication project to help deal with the’ priso
NP

Baghdad requested by the DEPSECDEF, you me and they
are working on it right now.
Each of these major command , each of these

cabinet members recognize tha 1d what no other

institution in the United State ould,do, and they are

providing those kinds of ily. Next slide,
please.

Monter cation activities in Monterey
are the intersection o is nation's future defense and

internal s needs. It's only in Monterey where we are

bringi today the needs of homeland security --
the uage, they need cultural understanding, they
als ny of the same technical skills that our
uniform warriors need. Homeland Security is intersecting
with the Department of State, is intersecting with the
Department of Energy, is intersecting with the Department of

Defense.

That is the future of our national security



capability and it is happening in Monterey today. Now, it's
not happening today in Monterey because that's an
institutional framework that is set up to make it happen.
It's happening in Monterey today because of the ingenuity,

the drive and the capability of faculty and studen of the

DLI and the Postgraduate School. Next slide,
The foundation, NPS gets a lot ofsmoney

appropriated, they get a lot of reimbur le, but ere are
still things that need to be done. mira aa nd many of
his colleagues have formed a foundati o further support
the capability of the Naval Po a te hool and further
support the transformation of their projects and products
into commercial activiti r the benefit of the military.
It also creates an ro n ere there is an incentive

to invent.

Our ¢lose proximity with the high tech area up

north is v able. A lot of people don't know that the
Window at's not working on my computer right now -
fault of NPS -- was actually invented at the
Pos School years ago. Next slide, please.

The Defense Language Institute. The DLI is the
absolute foundation of this nation's intelligence
capability. It hasn't been since 1812 that we had an
English-speaking enemy. And today, if we're going to win

the war against terrorism and be ready for tomorrow, most of



the friends we need also don't speak English. We'd better
learn how to speak their language, we'd better understand
how to deal with them and how to work with them in a
collaborative fashion if we are going to be safe today or in

the future. DLI is at the epicenter of doing what _needs to

be done across this United States.

Mr. Panetta mentioned what a sham nbles
our national language posture is right is out
there inventing what needs to be donef Th

missions: One, teach the languag , because they are

teaching so many difficult la e ha obody else

out at the curriculum's

teaches, they also have to
going to be and so on. the people taught, if
you don't use it, vy they also have to sustain
the linguists thnou nited States. ©Next slide.
And overseas.

th have to establish the assessment and

testin obody else can do it. So they're doing it
for.eve else in the United States, language-testing
bus . nd finally, they're on the cutting edge of the
researc hat is needed to figure out how we are going to
teach young Americans a foreign language that is terribly
foreign to our tongue in a very short amount of time so we
have enough time in their enlistment to actually put them to

work with the uniform on. And finally, they have to be



ready to transform these young Americans from American
citizens into American soldiers, sailors, Marines and
airmen. Next slide, please.

The DLI itself, it's housed at the Presidio. It

is an undergraduate university accredited by the Agsociation

of Schools and Colleges. It has some 3,600 st

but that number -- this slide has been veryshar

numbers are changing daily as their missdon ws.

teach six standard hours plus an addiji 1N
refresher training if needed plus4thr o four hours of
homework each night. They work the vi ut of those

students.

They also pro he distance learning
sustainment for ever i i the Defense Department
regardless of wh They have some 1200 faculty
that is one of! the most ique facilities in the world.

Most of th orn in the United States. Most of

them w Many of them are not even U.S.

cur t dialects and nuances of their language. That
faculty growing to some 1600 over the next four years.
They are supported by 400 staff members with an annual
budget of $160 million growing to some $300 million over the
five-year defense plan. Next slide, please.

The facility, there's some 1800 actually teaching,



another 300 developing the curriculum and testing and so on.
As I said, 98 percent are native sgpeakers. They didn't come
here as teachers of a second language, particularly the
English student. It's very hard in the outskirts of Kabul
to find professors ready to teach their language i

Monterey, California.

DLI goes out, finds these profess S

ionals,
them to Monterey and, working with the te In tute of
International Studies, makes them hi ’% teachers
of a second language. They have fa y pay system that

is designed to create incentiv o ua y work as opposed
to a pay system that is base ime service or COLAs or
anything like that. The
the quality of theirsstude
curriculum.

There is also roximately 100 military of mid

and senior POs jthat augment the instructors. They're

lingui ey are also mentors and drill sergeants to
hel i t transition from civilianhood to the military
ran slide, please.

I won't dwell on this. The Senators mentioned
this. As was pointed out this morning, ten of those 26
Arabic linguists really didn't go to civilian college;

they're graduates of West Point, so it's really a smaller

number. DLI is providing essentially all of the language



capability that is necessary for the current and emerging
threats to our national security. Next slide, please.

The Presidio itself, has just under 400 acres in
the heart of Monterey that also has some support from some

700-plus acres remaining at the former Fort Ord. ically

the Fort Ord community provides commissary, PX .an

support for both the Naval Postgraduate Sch

as well as the other military activitie r

1
in the region. They have approximatedy a milli
facilities budget.
The housing unit I e ard about. It is

ow you!'v
a joint project between the Nav - and it's the only one in

the United States where Army a the Navy have

cooperated to this absolutely the key of us
getting over the pe 10 at Monterey's a high-cost-of-

living area and soldier ouldn't live here. We dealt with

it when th ion s here.

t 6,400 units at the former Fort Ord, the
lar ' tory within all of the United States. We had
sol the lcost of living program -- problem, rather, for
our sol rs. The Presidio Navy problem is solved based on
the fact that they kept 2,200 units. But more importantly,
they kept the water capacity and the land capacity for

future mission growth.

We have a unique relation here in the City of



Monterey. We have special legislation that was granted by
the Congress on a permanent basis about a year ago that
allows the commanders in Monterey to buy municipal-type
services directly from the City of Monterey if they choose

to do so, if -- in other words, if it makes sense.

been doing it for a number of years with the A
Triple A, the Army Audit Agency, said that ¥f you le
fire protection with the base ops, it's P avings
for the base ops. If you throw in fi pr ction, we're

doing the work 49 percent more co

Agreement, with the Navy in-
sector. Next slide,
quality, efficiency,
Next slide, plea
There are oth OD assets that really help the

o speak, of NPS and DLI in the area.

hat you had a briefing on this morning; the
Naval R h Lab that was referred to; the Defense

Man er Data Center, and DPSRC, Defense Personnel Security
Researc enter. All of these are very high-powered
organizations, many of them defense activities with an
incredibly talented human infrastructure that is mutually
supportive in their pursuit of DOD needs. Next slide,

please.



Quality of life, the housing I have mentioned.
One aspect of the housing that is a little bit unique, the
heart and soul of the DLI and the Postgraduate School is its
civilian faculty. That faculty also needs housing. So

again, through the creativity of the local -- my local

counterparts at the Navy School and DLI, they
together, with Congressman Farr's help,
they worked with the City of Seaside to
to actually create the capability of
houses that would be available fo
faculty through something tha o}
program.

had a medical care

You may have

problem about a year#a change of the Tri-Care

contract. The T ct pays low, pays slow, and

there's not a lot of in tive for the private sector
doctors top ' in that program because of its tie to

Medica unusual Medicare rates we have here in

s soon as we heard of that problem, Congressman
Farr an ayor Albert pulled together a meeting of all of
the leadership of our regional medical community and we
solved that problem. I provided your staff a listing of a
wide range of practitioners who are now ready and eager to

provide support and medical care for the military and their



family members.

An example of how this happened, our local
hospital, CHOMP, offers a $150,000 forgivable loan to new
doctors; a condition of that loan is they must participate

in the Tri-Care system, an example of how this com ity has

come behind our military. Next slide, please.

Another example that I did refer slig his

morning, NPS and DLI both need a lot of oa nd acity
beyond the normal dot mail. They ne the t -U system

to facilitate their offsite work..« Th ostgraduate School

was in the process of buying
$1.5 million a year.
this, was aware of our

also aware of the e

ny COBRA model, but it's an example of how the
communi -- the greater community works to look for ways of
increasing mission effectiveness and cost effectiveness of
these military missions in Monterey. The base op support
that I recently, or just a moment ago spoke to also saves

millions of dollars each year. Next slide, please.



Privatization. This community became very
concerned when we were hearing, right up to the first week

of May, that the Navy was recommending the closure and

contracting out -- in other words, the privatization of NPS.
We couldn't understand it because it was hard for to
believe that they didn't understand the milita £

their own school.

But they were being driven by re t t said
it will save over a billion dollars ifi the Xt enty
years. When you look at the model.tha ey were using, as
the Senator said, it was flawed. " N I w that you've
heard every model that has ever en run, from the
community's perspective lawed. In this particular

case, we're happy tossit n h the staff and show you
piece by piece w i as forgotten for the non-DOD -
- nts.

e BRAC law says they must consider
all go encies that are impacted, not just, in this
cas artment of Navy. It indicates the short --

the the short courses, another full student body.

It indi ed they forgot the salary impacts, and so on.
Basically their recommendation, if it had not been turned
around by the Chairman of the Joint Chiefs and by the
leadership of the Secretariat, it would have been a

violation of the criteria regarding the military wvalue and



actual cost efficiency. 1In reality, if you actually do the
numbers, it would come to $142 million a year to contract
out rather than the $90 million a year savings. Next slide,
please.

This is a really hard slide to read and

apologize, but it basically tries to normalize It

tries to say, if you spend as many classroo

private university as you do at NPS, wh o At
mb it would

cost you $70,000. At MIT, $68,00 t Carnegie-Mellon,

$58,000. George Mason, $35,00

w
NPS, it would cost $33,300 per year. £ At C
a

g s you a sense of

why NPS is so cost effective: please.
Admiral Watki so concerned about the idea of
contracting out, he te u etter just several days

ago, and this is @an ac that letter. The full letter

is in your packet. But sically he expresses his concern

about the ing/of contracting out. Next slide,
ivatization doesn't make military value sense.
I'v this already, so I won't beat on it again other
than to y that the civilian education leaders have written
you letters saying they cannot replicate what you do at the
Postgraduate School or DLI, either in quality or in

quantity. Privatization absolutely undermines military

value. We did a -- we did do a study several years ago



where we sent out the -- TI'll call it the resumes of an
incoming class of NPS students to civilian university

entrance programs, and they found that some 75 percent of
those students would not have gained admission into their

civilian university. NPS takes them because they 2 eager,

they are professional, and they are ready to defe
nation. And going to school is their missi

and they do it well.

Most importantly, the Navy' ec en ion that
was turned around would have totalkly interaction with
the foreign students, which s e be rribly important

to the former Secretary of Stat S we as the leadership
and the Secretariat rig . Ne slide, please.

This 1s specifi

ly
- or wrote to yo , I believe it was quoted from
just a moment ago. Nex ide, please.
cation Ohio came up as a result of your

proces gton a few weeks ago. We believe that many

at Mr. Shultz read to you -

issues of moving to a civilian university would
hap g to Ohio. Basically, you have to dismantle and
destroy at you have here and try to recreate it some place
else. It won't work. Additionally, if you took the whole
academic plant -- not the PX and commissary, but the whole
academic plant, it would cost you almost $1.4 billion to put

NPS and DLI there. Next slide, please.



If you just looked at the NPS and unifying it with
AFIT, you get a potential savings of $9 million a year, but
the front-end cost, some $522 million to build the new
facilities, and $85 million to move gives you a hundred-year

payback if ever. Next slide, please.

The Commission, in '93, actually said

additional opportunities for efficiencies i

found that. There's specific recommendation? @ N lide.
They specifically recommen d&
closer base op support arrangement be en the DLI and
rie hr h an ISSA; it

Postgraduate School. That wa

didn't seem to work effectively r either side, so that was

the birth of our contra h the Army. There's probably

more that could sti ext slide, please.

pportunities. We would never
-- I mean, as you heard this morning, has
done an ex job of working with the Army, working

with t further reduce their base ops costs. I

per t we recognized when we first took over the Army, but

there a probably additional efficiencies that could be

found if they were consolidated into a single installation.
The NPS/DLI/AFIT alliance, there is an alliance

there; it should be strengthened. But it is an alliance

that probably would require a title change, and it may be an



alliance beyond the responsibilities of this commission.
But at some point in time, there should be some look at
combining the university overhead to see if there's
additional savings beyond the savings that has already been

recognized through the alliance amongst the school

Whatever this Commission's recommendations, I ever
lose touch with the fact that we must remaim respo
the war fighter needs or we're not doin he ght ing.
Next slide, please.

Regarding AFIT to Monte have/a community

policy that we're not trying r er people's
missions. The MOU recently &oo
schools we
such a way
be looking
structures

well as the support that they're currently

gettin Chu and from the Joint Chiefs and from the

wer . Next slide, please.

This actually addresses some of the collaboration
that exists and has been formalized through the agreement.

I believe last night at the reception, you met the President
of the NPS Board who works closely with the President of the

AFIT Board to give additional oversight on these two



curricula to make sure that they complement each other

rather than compete with each other. Next slide, please.
In summary, the DLI and the Postgraduate School

receive much of their mission value because of their

relationship with each other, because of their relationship

with the City of Monterey, and because of thei onship
with a wide spectrum of human infrastructur
infrastructure, research infrastructure i within
the Monterey region. Privatization PS

absolutely destroy their military.val at least for a

period of time and would not S ff ively.

The relocation of d/or,DLI to Ohio is cost
prohibitive, and more im s at ’a time we are at war and
we need linguists moxe “tha we cannot be allowed to

disrupt the mission re doing at the DLI or the

mission that you saw be done at NPS this morning. There
are probab ities to look for more efficiencies,

but th involve moving from Monterey. Next slide,

these would be our recommendations: Do
not pri ize NPS, AFIT or DLI. You would destroy military
value. Do not relocate NPS, AFIT or DLI due to the cost and
mission disruption. Do consider realigning the
installations to look for any duplicate installation

management overhead that remains. Do strengthen the



alliance, and again, look for opportunities to further
create efficiencies in the university overhead.

We must remain responsive to the war fighters. I
must say, I was surprised in 1993 when the Army was going to

throw the DLI away and privatize it by contracting out to a

private university. In 1993, it was the Defen
Secretary of Defense that stepped forward a
bad idea, and it didn't happen.

Again, we were surprised a is ed en we

heard that the Navy, as an organi was recommending

the privatization of this scho arly May. Again,
it was the Secretary of Defense i it was the Joint
Chiefs that said, this sense. We can never
forget the war figh : k with your considerations.
That's all I hav have gquestions.

ACTING CHAIR COYLE: Mr. Panetta, there isn't a

lot of ti but /did you have a statement you wanted to

make?

PANETTA: Sure, but I think I've already made

tement. I really do want to express my thanks to all

my
of you the service you're providing. I know you've
taken a lot of time.

This is a tremendous responsibility that you have,

but I thank you for taking the time to come here, to visit

these facilities. And I just urge you to consider the



arguments that have been made because I think they're right
on point.

Hopefully, you will consider them in ensuring
again that the work of the BRAC commission results in

improving our national defense.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COYLE: It's been ou

and thank you very much. We may have a couple

Mr. Muerer, yesterday I think dt w
"Monterey Herald" had a comparison o t% housing
costs, I believe it was, between nt and/Ohio. Would
e

you say something about those gos i ces? That's one

guestion I have.

And the secong estion ave is, could you say
something about wha e Title 10 changes would be
that would be re opportunities that you
mentioned?
ER: . Thank you, sir. On the housing
wrote an e-mail to the reporter saying I
wis checked her numbers with myself. I know they
wou d I know Admiral Maas wrote a similar letter
because you can do almost anything you want to do with
numbers. What you really have to do is what that one slide
does, is you have to essentially start unitizing to make

sure you're comparing apples and apples or you can come up

with something else.



We do have a reputation for providing a high-cost-
of-living area, but we believe that the RCI program has
taken care of the bulk of that problem. I think if you ask

the people who are serving here, they will tell you that

their quality of life is quite high even though they're
enduring a very, very difficult curriculum regat
which school.

In terms of the Title 10, rig no you have the
Postgraduate School that is a Navy school t 1s providing

a much wider mission to the other es, to the other

departments within the govern I, the other hand,

is a DOD school with the Army a n executive agent. As I

mentioned earlier, over bast years, each service has

tried to unload tha responsibility.

is it time -- because each
time, ecretariat level, at the DOD level
where the tepped forward -- right now it's Dr.
Chu th iving the train, the DEPSECDEF is driving the

train o expansion of language capability. It seems to

Now, we have leadership in the services that come
and go that have various levels for the schoolsg, so it would
be -- I think it would be a recommendation to just -- what
would be the best long-term way to ensure that we have long-

term support and long-term resources to these schools to do



this critical mission.

CONGRESSMAN FARR: Mr. Chairman, I might add on
the cost, there's a lot of other federal entities that are
here. This is not only the Navy and the Army, but the

Manpower Development Center is here for the Department of

Defense; Fort Hunter-Liggett, the BRAC is increés
bringing more personnel to the southern par
The Navy Lab is here, Fleet Numerical's
civilian entities are here as well, as
costs are concerned, you really have compare those as
on't think

nywhere in California

ashington, for that
-- it is more expensive on
the Midwest, but no more

or in Florida in other areas

CHAIRMAN COYLE: Are there any other
Bilbray.

BILBRAY: Yes, Mr. Chairman. I first would
like to y it's nice to be back in Monterey to spend some
time here. The last time I was here, I won't even tell you.
But the 6th Division was at Fort Ord, and I was crawling
through an infiltration course for -- I think I'm still out

there. But it's a beautiful community, and I was very



impressed with the -- both institutions we saw today.
I almost got to the Defense Language Center. By a
mistake in processing, they brought me there and sent some

other guy to a basic training company, but he squealed so

loud, they finally pulled me out of there.
But I'm very impressed and I want yo w that
I -- I can't say what the Commission's going’ to do, b I
really feel in the long run, it looks fi £ Mon ey.
(Applause.)

COMMISSIONER GEHMAN: Thank very much for your

statements, ladies and gentle . o) through two

issues.

One is, by th istics that we've seen today

and that were prese appears that about 40

Navy and about pergent come from other reimbursable kinds

of acti nd that about 47 percent of the students

SO -- well, take it the other way, 40 percent of
the stu t population are not Naval, in the Naval
Postgraduate sense and about 360 students from 60 different
countries are in residence here.

So it would not be too much of a stretch to call

this the Department of Defense Postgraduate School. Is



there any merit in pursuing that?

MAYOR MEURER: Sir, it all depends on who you ask.
Some would say it's dumber than dirt; others would say it's
a good idea. You actually have letters from people with far

more expertise than I to address that, people with_academic

background. You have a letter from Ray Cliffoné

Provost, who would like me to say yes. If u

survey the faculty at the Postgraduate Sghoo you would
probably get a yes. If you talked tofGene B Guard, the
former president of NDU, the form o) ident;of MIIS,
former member of the NPS Boar 1d obably say ves.

But there are alsoa e range of other folks of

high rank and high prests ho ha great concern that it

MR. GEHMA d cause what?
MAYOR MEURER: loss of focus on the needs of the
so early point out, it really is a

The Navy's actually getting a hell of a

goo inyterms of how much are they paying versus what's
the ount of money going into that school.

MR. PANETTA: Could I comment? When I was in the
Congress, I actually introduced legislation to establish a
National Defense University that would, in fact, bring
together those responsibilities, because I think -- you

know, obviously, both of these facilities, DLI and Navy



Postgraduate School, provide their curriculum not just to
the branches that run the schools. They provide it to all
of the branches plus, as you said, to foreign students as
well at the Navy Postgraduate School.

And they really do serve a larger defense.mission

by virtue of what they do. The problem is,
you get into the turf wars, when you immedi

start saying to either the Army or the We'd

like to bring this together, then th aut i ly go into
defense mode. Even though, to a rg tent, they haven't

been that supportive to the migsion b n with, but when

you threaten their turfs, th vy suddenly become very

supportive of the missi nd so at's the problem we're

dealing with right
MAYOR U 96, there was actually an OSD

DOD decision -- I forge think it was 719, something like

lly /looked at the unification. And they

he conclusion that while the Army had just
put jugt finished putting DLI on the closure list and
was lly selling the mission to others, they couldn't
agree w the Navy in terms of what would be the level of
reimbursement to the Navy from the Army budget if they were
to all go under a Navy operation, and it fell apart at the
last minute.

CONGRESSMAN FARR: When the Defense Department



took over the Army Language School, they kept the Army as
the executive agency. I think that the fact that other
departments, such as the Department of Homeland Security,
now the Department of State, have been coming to the

university -- to Naval Postgraduate School to essentially do

this cross-training of civilians, they're moviné
direction, although I'm not sure you'll get
for the buck making it a national univer
COMMISSIONER GEHMAN: Thank#you
second question is -- and once again, robably not
the right audience to ask thi ues n ; but anything

that you can add would be helpf

The speakers orning and also yourself

mentioned this thingsc oint Oversight Board, which
is an effort -- , ormal effort between the

leadership of AFIT and ght-Patterson and the Naval

Postgraduate 1 to reconcile course curriculums that are
-- see licate and things like that. And it's a
volunta kind of an organization with no -- no authority.
ut it does appear that perhaps if something
somehow hancing the role of the Joint Oversight Board, or
giving it a little bit more -- maybe putting a little more
energy into it might be a useful realignment.

MAYOR MEURER: Sir, I think we probably ought to

provide you something for the record, but it might be a



stronger board if, in fact, you actually had representatives
from Congress, folks that actually have to fund the mission
and it became more official. Obviously it's official when

the Secretary of Army and the Secretary of Air Force come in

agreement, it sounded official to the two institutions, but

there probably could be more effort and officia
associated with it. But I really would def
Postgraduate School and AFIT to comment.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COYLE: Mr.fChai

just want

to say, I think the City of Monterey its @ity Manager

deserve a lot of credit for firding no ive ways of

supporting DLI and the Postgrad e School. Perhaps there

are other examples of t ound the country, but this one
seems especially effegctiv ink you've done a great job
there.

Thank you all r your testimony. (Applause.) And

thank you yO support for this hearing. Thanks a
lot.
we will have the Navy Broadway Complex Panel
nex

ACTING CHAIRMAN COYLE: Miss Wright and gentlemen,
I understand you've already been sworn in earlier; is that
correct? And if you don't mind, I think we'll start and let

the other two commissioners catch up as they can. So I

think we'll start. And I don't know who's leading off here



for the group, but, please.

MS. WRIGHT: Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman and
Commissioners of the 2005 Defense Base Closure and
Realignment Commission. Clearly we've lost some of our
audience; I guess they're not worried about San Di , but -

- well, good. Thank you for staying.

My name is Julie Meier Wright, an ef
Executive Officer of the San Diego Regi
Development Corporation and the City «&6f Sa
representative in matters concerning 005/round of
defense base closures and rea e

With me today is Pete ckman, Vice Admiral
(Retired), who has been ber of our BRAC San Diego
Steering Committee is SO member of the Governor's

BRAC Advisory Counci A 11 Cassidy, Former Deputy

Assistant Secretary of Navy, and who, for the last two

and a half en our technical consultant on

matter o the 2005 round of BRAC; and Mr. Peter

Thank you for inviting us to appear before the
Commission at this regional hearing to present the City of
San Diego's position concerning the Navy Broadway Complex in
response to the Commission's July 19th decision to consider

the Complex for addition to the list of military



installations being considered for closure or realignment.

In the interest of time, I would ask that our
written testimony be made part of the official record, and
my comments will be more brief.

We're here today to ask that the Commission accept

tion

the Department of the Navy's decision to addre
of the Navy Broadway Complex outside the BR proce
Thus, we ask the Commission not to add B dwa

to the list of military installation ein ec ended for
closure and realignment.

And, at the outset, x irm the City of
San Diego's complete and unwave g support for the

,€le:e Dep

throughout the 2005 zound o©of base closures. In all of our

omplex

Department of the Navy ment of Defense

discussions with ith d with the Office of the

Secretary of Defense o the last two-and-a-half years, we

conveyed the message: San Diego believes that

contrib igh military value to the nation's defense, to
the nt of Defense's transformation initiative, and
to the tagon's efforts to establish joint military
activities wherever possible.

We have consistently expressed our interest in the

Department of Defense basing more forces and activities in

the San Diego region. We believe that our case was well



received, as reflected in the Secretary of Defense
recommendations of May 13, 2005 to the Commission. No Navy
and Marine Corps bases and no major activities in San Diego
were included on the 2005 list from the Secretary, and

moreover, additional forces and activities, includi

ten mine-warfare ships, would relocate to San D
the Secretary's recommendations.
On July 1, the Chairman of BR Co ssi sent a

letter to the Secretary of Defense coficernl P ible

additions to the list of installation o be considered for

closure or realignment. explain why 12
installations that the Commissi i fied had not been

Two installations

in San Diego, Marin

Cit Diego's representative, I led a presentation at
the reg al hearing on these two installations, and on July
19th, the Commission voted to remove one of these
installations, Marine Corps Recruit Depot, San Diego, from

further consideration.

So today, I'd like to focus on the Navy Broadway



Complex and provide additional perspective concerning the
discussions that have occurred within the San Diego
community and within the Department of the Navy over the
past month, and address the conclusions that were reached as

a result of the Commission's inclusion of the Navy oadway

Complex on the list.
Participants in the BRAC process,
Diego and in Washington, I believe, gav i ative

full and fair consideration. But aftér ev

the alternatives, both the Department the Navy and the
City of San Diego concluded t e ou not proceed under
the BRAC process for three reas that I want to discuss
today.

First, th oa y Complex has high military

value under the eria set forth in the Defense

nt Act of 1990 as amended through

the Nation se thorization Act for Fiscal Year 2005.

It is property. Consequently, it's not a proper
cond, the legal requirements for disposing of
base cl re property introduce risks for both the Navy and
for San Diego that could adversely affect both the Navy's
ability to gain sufficient proceeds from the 1992 Broadway
Complex Development Agreement in order to build a new

headquarters for Navy Region Southwest and related



activities, as well as for the City's ability to achieve its
planned redevelopment of the downtown waterfront area along
San Diego Bay, which is the area known as the North
Embarcadero.

And third, there's an alternative approa that

both the City of San Diego and the Navy prefer
embodied in the 1987 federal statute that a
Navy to participate in the redevelopmen
complex property, and the 1992 Development nt and

Entitlements. This approach bett S es the interests of

the Navy and of San Diego, an t es very long

tradition that the Navy and

San Diego have

ich is locally known as CCDC, is
Redevelopment Agency, and he has

erey today. CCDC has a 30-year track

Navy Broadway Complex.
So I'd now like to introduce Mr. Hall, who, with
the assistance of a Power Point presentation, will describe

the ways in which the City has worked with the Navy on the



Navy Broadway Complex matter. Peter.

MR. HALL: Thank you, Julie, and thank you,
Members of the BRAC Commission.

I'm pleased to highlight redevelopment in San

Diego and our long and fruitful partnership with the Navy.

The Navy Broadway Complex is outlined here in

slide.

CCDC, or Centre City Developm c oration,
which is its formal name, was create t Ci of San
Diego in 1975 for the sole purposg of develeoping the 1500-
acre downtown. We are not a t ev per. Centre City
Development Corporation is a‘“wh -owned, non-profit
subsidiary of the City, , amongst other
responsibilities, acfs “as e nning authority for

downtown San Die

We are the ap nted representative of the Mayor

and City Council .to a on the City's behalf with respect to

the re of the Navy Broadway Complex. Our

redevel ent. Next slide, please.

Over the past 30 years, redevelopment has had a
dramatic effect on our downtown. The economic gains from
redevelopment have reverberated throughout the City,

providing a solid base that anchors the region. Today



downtown San Diego is becoming an urban success story. Next
slide, please.

I would like to give a brief history of the Navy
Broadway Complex and the development agreement between the

City of San Diego and the United States of America

entitles this property. Next slide.
In 1987, the Navy and the
received Congressional authority to

redevelop the site which would meet

occupancy needs as well as the Cigy's development goals of
creating a variety of uses al u at ront. To help
facilitate this joint wventure, emorandum of Understanding
was reached between the of Sa iego and the Navy.

Next slide.

In tha ea he San Diego Association of
Governments, or SANDAG, eated the Broadway Coordinating
Group, i ded .our partner, the Navy, to help plan
the ar i . During the ensuing five years, this
joint e resulted in a redevelopment plan meeting our
res tive \interests and needs. Next slide.

In 1992, after five years of planning with a
collaborative basis, the City and the Navy reached an
agreement concerning the Navy Broadway Complex resulting in
full entitlement, including urban design guidelines for the

Navy Broadway Complex project. Coincidentally, this marked



the beginning of a national recession that hit San Diego
particularly hard.

But of great significance, this plan has received
approval from the California Coastal Commission, the

California Environmental Quality Act, CEQA, and th ational

Environmental Policy Act, NEPA. Next slide.
In 1998, the Department of Navy a
San Diego, along with San Diego Unified i and
the County of San Diego, completed a | cant joint
planning effort, the North Embarcader isionary Plan,
affecting this property. Thi ile alf, $250 million

plan for rebuilding the public ce from the airport to

Seaport Village will ma Navy Broadway Complex

development the anc tire western waterfront.

This multi-agenc the lynchpin of one of the

last great waterfront opment projects on the West
Coast. Nex
ly we are completing the community plan
update r city, and it will be approved a little later
thi . » The plan outlines the next 30 years of urban
develop t for our downtown, and includes this North
Embarcadero Visionary Plan and the Navy Broadway Complex.
Next slide.
My point to all this is that there has been a

tremendous amount of effort and public investment of the



Navy and the citizens, and the City of San Diego including
public outreach and consensus building, that have gotten us
to where we are today. Both Navy priorities and the office
market conditions have aligned for the completion of this

effort.

Today, the time is right, and we and the Na
move forward pursuant to our 1992 agree
Current market conditions e ri n RFP

process to dispose the property t ate developer which

would generate sufficient fun vy to construct

suitable headquarters for Nawy ion uthwest here or
inside the fence of an ng military base to fulfill the
goals and commitmen i o) years of work. Next
slide.

The 1992 Deve ment Agreement, which I previously

mentioned, s stipulations for maximum allowable uses

at the h include a variety of product types to

stimula local economy, improve the quality of life

dow d provide for the Navy's needs. Fine-tuning of

the pro t mix and design elements will accommodate current

market conditions and changing community needs. Next slide.
The development agreement contains fairly

stringent design guidelines that provide for architectural

standards, street-level frontage, form and scale, access,



parking and landscaping to enhance both the development and
the public amenities of this very significant project. And
we are sensitive to and recognize the need to work with the
Navy to accommodate its post 9-11 security needs. Next

slide.

I also mentioned how this project anc
critical to the North Embarcadero Visionary
approved by all five agencies including
waterfront area is a critical part offthe
downtown San Diego's redevelopmen as you can see, the
Navy Broadway Complex site is 1 t of this grand
plan for our city's front porch.", This /project will remake

scale. And as a Navy

town, it should inc The North Embarcadero

Visionary Plan h ceived a hundred percent
design approval. This a great example of interagency

e public good. Next slide.

ioned earlier, the City of San Diego and
the, Dep t of the Navy have a long history of

coo i in matters involving real property. Much of our
waterfr was formerly Navy property, and through highly
productive partnerships, we have benefited both the Navy and
our City. For the Navy, property transfers resulted in
expansion of Naval Station, San Diego, allowing the Navy to

build additional piers to the south end of our waterfront



along with support and training facilities.

For San Diego, as you can see on this slide, the
partnership has resulted in important new public and private
developments for the City: a modern, state-of-the-art

convention center, several waterfront hotels, publi parks

and marinas. Most recently, the conveyance of
pier from the Navy to the Port of San Diego
a wonderful new public space, enabling
the USS MIDWAY Naval Museum, which, in its

attracted over one million visito

We ask that you allow u buzi on this record
of success by moving forwardiun the ,provisions of the
1987 federal statute an 1992 elopment Agreement with

the City and its crudial 1 ents, both major milestones
that are reflect 1 e North Embarcadero Visionary
Plan and today!s update ommunity Plan. Our partnership

with the been a major success, and we ask that you
allow inue. Thank you.

WRIGHT: Thank you, Peter. I believe that Mr.
Hal outlined the tremendous investment to date, as well
as a cl process for moving forward. So now I'd like to
elaborate briefly on the reasons why San Diego supports the
Navy's decision to proceed under the 1987 statute rather

than under the Defense Base Closure and Realignment Act of

1990, as amended.



First, under the selection criteria for closing
and realigning military installations in the 2005 round of
BRAC, the Navy Broadway Complex has indisputably high
military value and is an essential component of the Force

Structure Plan. It serves as headquarters for Nav

Southwest and is the office for Fleet and Indu upply
Center, San Diego, and the Naval Facilities
Command, San Diego, Southwest Division.
Complex clearly meets the selection iter1
high military value as set forth ih t statute and is not
excess property.

Second, compared with e provisions of the 1987

federal statute, which ailored specifically for the

redevelopment of th vy y Complex, the property

disposal process ith ted by the Defense Base

Closure and Realignment of 1990, as amended, presents

risk to bo f San Diego and to the Department of
Navy.
first risk is the introduction of unnecessary
and itional delay to the redevelopment of the Navy
Broadwa omplex. While both Navy concerns and real estate
market conditions have caused much of the delay to date --
and I would say parenthetically, as a benchmark to this, San

Diego, only in the last year has built any new Class A

office space downtown since the early 1990s for the same



market conditions. But the legal requirements of the BRAC
process for property disposal introduced the likelihood of
significant additional delay in redeveloping the property
because the BRAC property disposal process first would

require the Navy to offer the property to other DOD

agencies, and then to other federal agencies,
Navy would thereafter have to consider requ

public and private entities for a publi

en
of the property at the Broadway Compléx, a or rt of it.
tu a

And all of these processes have s nd/regulatory
time lines, but they can, upo equ , extended which

would add further delay to the e wh the property would

statute, in concert with the
Entitlements provide a clear
the market value of the

in jeopardy. If some or all of the

in response to a Request for an Interagency
Surplus Federal Property, and if a waiver of the
payment fair market value were granted to the requesting
agency, or if some or all of the property were conveyed to
another public or private entity by way of a no-cost public
benefit conveyance, the market value of the Navy Broadway

Complex would be introduced.



And the result could be that the Navy wouldn't
gain sufficient, or perhaps not gain any, revenue from
redevelopment of the remaining Navy Broadway Complex

property with which to build a new headquarters for Navy

Region Southwest, and its associated Navy activitie

Fourth, the 1992 Development Agreement .a

Entitlements would be placed in jeopardy. e BRAC pprocess
could not only be time-consuming, but a c dr 1t in
the division of the Navy Broadway Co ex e among

several owners. And such an outcgme adversely affect

redevelopment of the City's N E rc ro waterfront
area in conjunction with the“De opme Agreement and
Master Plan. It's possib hat in the BRAC disposal

2

O

process, the 1999 - Development Agreement and

Entitlements coul d and changed, or even
abandoned.

ally, the BRAC process would afford those

who se in. ownership of property at the Navy Broadway
Complex “and “‘those who seek to limit that property's future
use opportunities to seek to preclude the redevelopment
that is rrently envisioned and planned by the five parties
to the North Embarcadero Visionary Plan, who are CCDC, the
Navy, the City, the County and the Port, a really tremendous

public-public alliance.

And as you heard from Peter, this has been



reaffirmed in the City's General Plan update with the
Community Plan just being completed through the leadership
of CCDC.

And fifth, to our knowledge, there are no other

suitable Navy-owned facilities in the region that ha

sufficient available space to accommodate Navy .Reg

Southwest staff and the other activities th prese
occupy the Navy Broadway Complex.

There is a reasonable altepnativ ha he
Department of Navy and the City of Sa iego prefer, and
that's the 1987 federal statu h w specifically

1

ex., The 1987 federal

statute authorizes the o participate in redevelopment
of the Navy Broadwa remain on the property.
And combined wit ght Development Agreement and
Entitlements, i ed from extensive public

consideratio i ous federal and state agency review,

as you . Hall, this 1987 statute provides a

redevel ent of the Navy Broadway Complex.

You know, the July 1 letter from the Chairman of
the BRAC Commission to the Secretary of Defense and the July
19 decision of the 2005 BRAC Commission to consider the Navy

Broadway Complex for closure or realignment served to



catalyze very important discussions both in Washington and
in San Diego. These discussions focused on the different
elements and legal requirements of each of the two federal
statutes under which the Navy Broadway Complex could be

redeveloped.

And I believe that both statutory au
fully and fairly considered with two goals
goals were to gain a modern and secure
Navy Region Southwest and the associated N
there, and to redevelop the North. Emb adero/area according
to the plan developed by the the in e North

Embarcadero Alliance.

The public di on precipitated by the BRAC
Commission's July 1 J ctions engaged all who have
an interest in t e he Navy Broadway Complex, and
we want to thank you fo at. That was very important. We

objectivel nsidered all the opinions and concerns

broad range of participants in these
discuss A, I believe the Department of the Navy and the
Cit Diego truly seek to achieve both the Navy's goal
of gain a new modern and secure headquarters for Navy
Region Southwest, and the City's goal of revitalizing its
waterfront by completing the last link in the North
Embarcadero Visionary Plan.

The City of San Diego supports the Department of



the Navy's decision, and, therefore, the City of San Diego
respectfully asks the 2005 Defense Base Closure and
Realignment Commission to accept the Department of the
Navy's decision to proceed outside the BRAC process with

respect to the Navy Broadway Complex and not to add.the Navy

Broadway Complex to the list of installations
Commission recommends for closure or realigpme

round of defense base closures and realignme

Thank you very much for thi& opp uni to
present the City of San Diego's p@sit uring the 2005
BRAC round to all of you. Th s v m

ACTING CHAIRMAN COY¥YLE: . Thank you. Are there any
. I

MS. WRIGH he

other comments from anyk >1se o he panel to be made at
this time?
available to answer any

questions you have.

HAIRMAN COYLE: This commission has -- in

e members of this Commission have said that
the 's important for our military to benefit from
the transfer of properties. So I think on this
Commiss there is considerable support for the idea that,
in this instance, the Navy should benefit as should other
services in the case of other properties.

But there's two ways for -- in this case, there's

two ways for the Navy not to benefit. One is to do it the



wrong way, as you've pointed out. The other is to not do it
at all. And as our Chairman pointed out the other day, it's
been nearly twenty years.

You say that the -- that the 1992 Development

Agreement might be placed in jeopardy. It appears

that it's been overtaken by events -- the 1992 has
been overtaken by events. Namely, the Navy i last
week that they now wanted to lease the didn't

want to transfer it. Do you have a mmen that?

MS. WRIGHT: Well, the 87 atutesprovides for

leasing, and there are many w le S be executed, and

Mr. Hall may want to comment“fu on that. But we simply

see that as a much clea d more certain path to
redevelopment.
I woul oint jout that in the early '90s,

just about the/time tha is development agreement and

entitlemen ted, California was in the midst of

losing bs; in the San Diego region, 58,000 jobs.
And, so think one of the major reasons that this has not
mov forward and been executed already is because the
market and wasn't there.

The beauty of your raising this question at this
time and the intense analysis of the operation -- of the
options going forward has really put us in an ideal position

to execute the 1987 agreement and the Development Agreement



and Entitlements with no risks to any of them in going
forward.
ACTING CHAIRMAN COYLE: Well, I understand the

economic conditions in the early '90s. But do I have it

correct, is the '92 agreement overtaken by events? id it
contemplate a lease?
MS. WRIGHT: Yes. Peter, you mig want

comment on it.

t that was

MR. HALL: Not only did it «£€onte a
the fundamental structure derived.fro e '87 authority.
So it is anticipated that thi r;rx 1 be disposed of
through a lease just like al he adjacent properties
e

o
along our waterfront ar r th tate tide lands. If you
look at our hotels, is hi erminals, all of the
property at the t nt tis under State Lands control and
is exactly that. 1It's sehold, long-term leasehold. And

I believe ecgnomics of a long-term lease, prepaid,

will b ilar to the economics of a sale.
ING CHAIRMAN COYLE: Perhaps I misunderstood,
but t one of your charts said that '92 agreement
intende ull entitlement of the City.

MR. HALL: Full entitlement by development rights,
not full entitlement of ownership.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COYLE: Thank you.

MR. HALL: It will still be redevelopment property



that way.
ACTING CHAIRMAN COYLE: Mr. Hansen.
CONGRESSMAN HANSEN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
We visited with the Navy last week, and it was

very educating to hear what had gone on for the pe

time. The Admiral was pointing out the various .£h th
occurred, and it kind of tied in with what u had,
Hall, on your flow chart.

We got the impression that e N w ed to stay
there. They wanted to be part of«thi hey/could see
where the value could be kind M among the City

j d of

ended itself to be

and others, and it was --
Navy anyway, being in a
MIDWAY across the s
though, definitely came down
a very diplomatic way, said, Why
butt out of this thing and let us

And basically it seemed to me a very

roach they came up with.

the other side of the coin, your flow chart
just pi d up on what Mr. Coyle was talking about: Why
does it take so long? It's gone on and on and on, and it
just doesn't seem like anyone took it too seriously. We
suggested to the Navy that, in our language -- and this was

-- and I don't know how the Commission will finally come



down. But at the time, we left with the impression that we
suggested to the Navy that, Fine, we'd do that. But, as you
know, our report, it goes to the President on September the
8th, and then it goes through the rigmarole of the 45 days
to the Congress, and 15 days back to the President And if
it survives all that, which the last four roundé hen
it becomes the law.
But we suggested that report, ic ould. become
a the Senate

statutory law when voted on by both e Ho
i a

and signed by the President, we p limitation,

saying, in effect, we're goin o s y a little bit and
we're going to put a time length in there. And if that
doesn't come about, the e a revisionary clause in it
that it would go ba o} g that you were all
alluding to of wher e rty would go.

re

As you know, 's certain statutory provisions

for the prop hat /jcan be carried out, and most of them,

I don' desirable, but, you know, there's one for
homeles le and one for a penitentiary and one for a lot
ich I don't think you would find too desirable,
especia in that spot.

But, how does that seem to you? Would you find
that -- if the Committee did that -- and I can't speak for

the Committee, I'm only one of nine. But if the Committee

did that, how would that affect you? But the second part of



that question's pretty obvious, and what length of time
would you think would be good?

MR. HALL: On the first issue, as you know, as
you're aware, the Navy, in fact, had carpe diem. I mean,
they were out with an RFP ready to hit the market n the

BRAC process got started. The stars have alig akes

five years in California on coastal properti
an efficient process to get entitlement.
the benchmark is '92, because that w the ime where

they could do anything.

In 1992, we were in d it resulted in
over 30 percent vacancy in the i rket in San Diego.
ery first new high rise
r this year, in 15 years!
ago started -- or a year ago

started the process for e RFP. And notwithstanding your

responsibilitd I would hope that we would be able to see

that R into the market, post the BRAC hearing

process, move it forward as, you know, bringing the

As far as the time line question, well, if we are
moving forward the RFP, we fully expect over the next, you
know, year to two years everything to be in place and
executed. I think that's a reasonable expectation for a

military disposal process.



CONGRESSMAN HANSEN: Would you be amicable to one
that had a statute of limitations, not to the completion of
the work or the property, but the completion of the
agreement?

MS. WRIGHT: Let -- let me --

CONGRESSMAN HANSEN: I mean, signed, ssSea
delivered, legal. All that stuff.

MS. WRIGHT: Let's me say, th

incentive for the completion of the reem

Development Agreement and Entitlement pire/in January of
2007. So I believe that the h d loud and clear
when you asked the question, “an hat s a very valuable

contribution to the pro

I'm quite gatis t everyone is paying
attention to moving i's ss forward, but most
importantly, that the m et is aligned in a good way to

achieve maxi lue for the Navy. I think that is

suffici ive to get moving as quickly as we can.
CONGRESSMAN HANSEN: What's the date of your
agr the date you just gave us?

MS. WRIGHT: January 1, 2007.

CONGRESSMAN HANSEN: January 1, 2007,

MS. WRIGHT: The development agreement and the

entitle --

CONGRESSMAN HANSEN: -- says what?



MS. WRIGHT: -- that that is the expiration date
of the Development Agreement and Entitlements. And let me
say -- I don't want to say this, but as a former Secretary
of Trade and Commerce for California, one of the biggest

challenges we face is recalibrating that clock to o and

starting over through the Coastal Commission ané
NEPA when, in fact, we have a very current m
that anticipates the development that's tl d
development agreement.

CONGRESSMAN HANSEN: Well, an we understand
that.

MS. WRIGHT: So we“ar ery centivized to move
forward.

CONGRESSM : see. Well, maybe if we

gave you one mor th the same date on it, it

would give you a real i ntive to get moving on this thing.

Thank you, irm

CHAIRMAN COYLE: Thank you, Commissioner
Hangen.

mmissioner Bilbray, any questions?
COMMISSIONER BILBRAY: Yeah, I got it.

First, I want to make it clear to the people of
San Diego I'm not Brian Bilbray, I'm James Bilbray. He's

younger and a Republican and he represented the San Diego

area, not the Las Vegas area. So don't blame Brian for my



comments.
What I wanted to ask is on the same line as
Congressman Hansen asked. We got the impression at that

meeting with the admirals that there was kind of like, you

guys don't know what you're talking about. You're t
bright enough to understand all this, and -- w t a
very good comment to make to the Commission

But the fact is that I think t wan ome
sort of pressure on them, not just frém wh we id today.
This BRAC is going to end in aboutl 30 s, and there may
not be another BRAC for ten & S tor Warner has

e

his way, there will never be‘an er BRAC.

But what happ en w o out of existence and
on

we haven't put any e em, and the Navy now has

been, since '87 - stand there was an economic

downturn, but that's wh 19 years or 18 -- 17 years since

they first this negotiation. And I think Chairman
ly strong on this feeling that he was an
officer e Navy that helped draft the '87 agreement, and
was really, or angry, at the fact that nothing has
happene n that period of time.

I think there was a strong feeling within this
Commission that we want to put some sort of leverage on the

Navy to make sure that they go forward and get this

agreement done. And I think that's why Commissioner Hansen



pointed out, what's the reasonable time to put it? Two
years? At the end of two years, if no agreement has been
made to develop this property, that the facility will be
closed? And that's what the gquestion is, two years, 18

months, 20 -- 30 months? We want some sort of pre re on

it. I think that's where we're leaning. I can

everybody else on the Commission, but just aring
he

other people have said, I got the feeli th t
support for the Chairman on this pro s&
MS. WRIGHT: Let me just sa - I want to go back
th

and revisit. The five years a Development

Agreement and Entitlements, includes an inordinate

tanked, and I think the most

d that San Diego has actually done better than
Califor and better than the nation throughout the early
2002 recession is that there was just not demand for the

kind of property represented in this Development Agreement
at the Navy Broadway complex. And, therefore, if the Navy

had seen fit to proceed, they would have realized far less



money than they would have by waiting until the market
timing was right.

With great respect to the Commission, I believe
that if the Commission says nothing, that this community and

the Navy are ready to more forward aggressively to_.take

advantage of the market window that's currentl to

get things done before the Development Agre

Entitlements themselves expire in about fhalf.
COMMISSIONER BILBRAY: I want comment on

that. Since 1998, I have been involv on a voluntary basis

with the Chamber of Commerce ir Ch man of the
to,the Chamber, also
ttee which facilitates
the transfer of pro many other things, between

city agencies, agencies, the authorities, et

cetera. Therels someth like 17 different pieces of

property b€l ed and moved around at this time.

And I just on an unofficial basis.

this ec mic downturn in there because they could receive
no value to the property. They had to wait until there was
a time when the value of this property with the markets

reached a point where it became advantageous, a win-win

situation for both sides, in order to move ahead. We were



at that point until I was called by the Navy about a year --
was it 15 months ago, Peter? To back away because we had
the RFP ready to be issued, to back away from the process in
deference to the BRAC process because it -- the Navy said it
would be seen as a predisposed disposal, or a trangsfer of

property ahead of the BRAC process. So it was @

caused by that.
But the original delay back i he whe e were
ready to go was the fact that the Na ou a ve nothing

c
out of a transfer at that time begaus €re was no economic
value attached to the propert o} er as quite a loss

there. I will just pass that o s having worked in that

equation for -- since 19 1til t present time. Thank

you.
ACTING CH Thank you. Admiral
Gehman, any other quest s?
GEHMAN: Just a very short one, and I
appreci your comments and help with this issue.

myself, I agree with what my fellow

com sioners have said here. We certainly would not -- I
don't b eve that this Commission -- just speaking for
myself, we certainly would not want to do something under
the authority of the BRAC legislation that would do harm to

your project.

And I believe that we are clever enough to write



language or something like that that would in no way take
away from the advantages that you have under these statutes,
that you have for the redevelopment. 1It's a very, very
unique arrangement.

By the way, we have been all over the co

talking to people all over the country about base
things like that that are closing who do nog® have

wonderful agreement in which the Depart t Def

doesn't get any benefit from the clo o} b . So, you
know, good for you.
On the other hand, n i oes strike me

that I've heard this argument s ral mes that, in the

years that have gone pa le the clock has been ticking
ecause of the economic

a, the property really wasn't
there couldn't be any economic
erefore, the Navy could not accrue

it either.

though, you forget that the Navy is

for 'this place. Paying upkeep on it, it's -- about a
third o quarter of the square footage is being utilized,
so I do feel that -- that if this Commission could find
language which would spur the consummation of this deal, I

would be -- I think that would be helpful as long as the

language in no way harmed either party.



For my colleagues, for example, if you put a date
certain into it, then that kind of takes all the steam out
of the negotiations because one side or the other would just
sit there with their hands folded across their chest waiting

until the date certain comes. So I do -- I am kind

sensitive toward some kind of a process by whic
could help you do your job.

In furtherance of that, or my es n is, - sorry
for the speech. My question is, I wafit to ke re I
understood you correctly. You referr o the five-year
timetable under California st e va us coastal and
environmental wickets that you e to,go through that I'm

not familiar with.

But did I er n u -- and this is the key
point I think I n make ., for the Commission. Did I
understand you, to say t , based on certain filings or

agreements ‘o s that you have submitted, that that clock

has al ed running?

HALL: The five-year I was referring to was
pos 7 authorization or legislation. It took us five
years w ing with the community, the city, the Navy and all
of the California and Federal Environmental Protection Acts
just to get to the point where there was entitlement to

build something there.

That's why I suggested that the real index would



be, you couldn't do anything before 1992 because all you had
was military land. 1992 was the moment where there was an
executed development agreement with full entitlement and all
of the state and federal hurdles having been satisfied, the

statutory requirements. It was '92 where everybod

ready to go, and I would agree with you. Gosh
the market. The problem was, we had three llion

feet of empty space in downtown and an no sti

falling.
COMMISSIONER GEHMAN: Right.»fSo if/we are going
to craft language to spur thi e nt ong, we would not
req

want to craft language which“wo

re you to go back
and start all over again ecause that would not be helpful.

he conservation of this

agreement ett gonditions in your city, and a
year from ions change again and you're not
in a positio dvantage of this, I don't think we

should Navy waiting at the door forever.

I don't know what kind of language it would be

tha e would craft, but I fall someplace in between the

two.
MS. WRIGHT: Commissioner Gehman, maybe I could

make a suggestion that might be helpful. I do want to say,

there is plenty of incentive in the Development Agreement

and Entitlements themselves. They add real value to that



property. They have a timetable; they're due to expire in
about 18 months, so there's the first incentive.

We want to move forward as a city and as a region
because this is the -- what Peter sometimes calls "the front

porch of San Diego." It is beautiful real estate

anchored by the MIDWAY Aircraft Carrier and a

all

museum. It would be a gaping hole in what me, peoy
v rw

the smile of San Diego if we were not t o o d with

redeveloping. It is an 80-year-old cil I think
we're all very aware.
What I would like u i hat perhaps we

could consult with the Navy

i
9
cou come back to you in
wi

t
d
ess a clear schedule for

anuary of 2007 so that you would
e ready to move forward. But
e strongest possible terms that
and indeed the entire region, are
orward.

If you were in San Diego last

the tremendous vibrancy of downtown as

We are very anxious to move that redevelopment to
the -- to the San Diego Bay, and we are extremely concerned
that the new uncertainties that would be added by the BRAC
process could be a detriment to moving forward at the very

time that we're ready to go.



ACTING CHAIRMAN COYLE: Thank you very much.

Just in the interest of the right hand knowing
what the left hand is doing here, I want to say for the
record that we asked the Navy when we visited there the

other day how they would like us to write this. said

they would provide that. They said they under
that meant in a week -- not a month, becaus
we have before we're going to be voting.
with them

you, who represent the City, should on ti

about how they would recommend this b ritten. We

shouldn't -- you know, get so ro hem that you

wouldn't support of vice versa.

However, the hat t development agreement

expires in 18 month knew it, it was not
apparent to me that d ecause when we asked them how

much time would you nee hey said two years, three years,

as though S no milestone in as little time as 18

months d say, well, if, in their heart of hearts,
the, Nav ly wants to stay right there the way they are,
the e smart to let the agreement expire and then go
back to uare one, just as you have said would not be a
good idea.

So I agree with what Commissioner Gehman has said.

We've already asked the Navy how they would like it to be

said, we hope you will coordinate with them and provide a



joint response.
MS. WRIGHT: Thank you, Chairman Coyle. We will
be in contact with them tomorrow.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COYLE: Thank you all for your

testimony. We appreciate it very much, and appreciate your
help with our -- all of our many questions.
MS. WRIGHT: Thank you for the oppOrtuni be
here.
t

ACTING CHAIRMAN COYLE: We'!s#fe gol ake a very
short break, just a couple of minutes, :and welll be ready
for the delegation from Alask

(End of record.)

STATE OE AS
ACTING CH OYLE: Thank you very much for

being here and/please b n. We first have to ask you to

stand and in /by the BRAC secretary.

HIG: Would you raise your right hands,
please?

The Witnesses are sworn.)

MR. YODER: I'm here for the City of Galena. This
is Dean Westlake, and he is the travel administrator. He 1is
going to speak first and the only expert Galena has and

that's Commander Yoder from the Navy. He gave me a little

advice, but the main reason we used him is because the price



was right. So from that, we'll go forward.
ACTING CHAIRMAN COYLE: Thank you. And by the
way, we have in our books an important letter in support of
the community of Senator Stephens, and we'll make that part
of the record.
MR. WESTLAKE: Before I begin, thank

wonderful staff. They've made us feel at hgme

to tell you that you chose them well. nk u.
On September 19, 1993, the Mnite ta of

America officially closed the mili stallation in

Galena, leaving it on warm st gnized what a

great opportunity this presente thank you for

loaning us the necessar ldings o continue to serve the

American people.
Since u us, I am pleased to inform you

what we are dome in Gal with your installation. We now

have a boa hool on your FOL which has approximately

one nts from across Alaska. We envision a time
whe i have up to 500 students there. We have had

stu m Barrow to St. George Island that have received
the ducation that Alaska has to offer. We have had
every major Alaskan native group represented in our school
in Galena. We take and educate children regardless of race,

creed, tribal affiliation or lack thereof.

We want all Alaskans, and especially native



Alaskans, to compete successfully in the world market. This
is only possible because of your warm status, and Coleacon
Athabascans take this honor seriously. High school students
graduate from Galena Interior Learning Academy with higher

SAT scores than most places in Alaska. The No Chi

cosmetologists, private pilots, small e
mechanics. If not ready for the job_.ma
there, and only a minimal amount t on additional
training is needed.

If not for your waxm tus, ;our closest institute
anks, Alaska. If a

n home today, it would cost

This is only one of the X native tribes impacted. We have

that our children can now afford to return

home £ i occasions, and we thank you for that

very year, we invite our armed forces to speak to
our you about futures in the military. We are proud of
our country and what we stand for. During World War ITI,
Louden Tribal Council was sawing and selling wood and using
the proceeds to buy war bonds to serve our country. Today,

these war bonds hang in our offices as a reminder to all we



are Americans first.

In every major conflict, even those today in
Afghanistan and Iraq, you will find that Americans from
Galena, Goosenia, Ruby, Koyukuk and Nolado, Kaltag, Galena,

being a hub town, know that we are interdependent on each

other. Louden's motto is, we work together.

You have helped us and we have been gladly lping n

every way we call.

9 illion

, utilizes
native towns
and are

as well as

we had 1,472

uttle Challenger went down, you
ps to come and pick up the pieces.
With h we were there, and we cherish the letters
t we received from NASA. As always, we
ed out of Galena's FOL. For many of us native
Alaskans, firefighting is our primary source of income. We
thank you for maintaining a base that is by far the safest
for our primary breadwinner.

The Fish and Wildlife utilizes your support

services and your buildings in Galena to keep their offices



for the 750,000-acre Innoko Wildlife Refuge, a 2.1 million
acre Nowitna Wildlife Refuge and the 4-and-a-half-million
acre Koyukuk Wildlife Refuge and is supplied with personnel
and logistical support for these seven million acres. On

occasion, we see the United States Coast Guard fly _here to

Galena to refuel and rest. At other times, fo
1

before a rescue or to patrol the thousands

o
northwestern coast of Alaska. We welco th presénce.
o

We have our own subsidiary an r ation,
which employees 14 highly-trained loc eople on the
military base to ensure operatdi 1 ad ss in time of

crisis. Because of our trainin

we were the first native

Currently, volved in community

gardening, vario istance programs, housing,

public as well/ as commu wellness, and we take pride in
our colleg ip program. We sponsor an after-school

progra and teach sports as a healthy lifestyle

ould the base close, most of the income and all
of our ams for Louden Tribal Council to become a self-
sustaining entity will be seriously jeopardized. Drastic
cutbacks will have to be implemented and our services to the

community would be, at best, minimal.

Louden Tribal Council endorses the nuclear power



study slated to begin in Galena. The State of Alaska had
begun the disbursement process for this project study; now
we wait. The model for this project had included the energy
consumption of Galena's FOL. Safer, cheaper energy for all
with the added benefit of a major reduction in the st of

living for our community.

As you are all aware, Galena's FOL' is, cl o)
northern and western Alaska than any ot a bas We
keep hearing of these wonderful new 22s t 1 be

stationed at Elmendorf in Anchorage. d bless America for
having the capacity to still b in the world.
This also gives us pause as we sider our future
conflicts. Our oppositi 11 al have faster airplanes
and longer ranges. Ti wi me even more critical, not
less so.

Galena, built an air fighter town, understands

the Air Fo philosophy that states that speed equals life.

In thi ge, 1t applies to our national defense now
mor ithever did. You trained our nation's best and
bri ung people to become air superiority fighters.
"Tigers in the sky" is what they called themselves
when they came to Galena. They came to Galena to serve our
country on the northern front, to defend America and to buy

time. The Tiger Freeway, which cuts through the middle of

our town, leads to what was Campion Air Base. In honor and



respect to these brave souls, it will always be Tiger
Freeway.

We have heard how closely tied we are to
Fairbanks. We respectfully have to disagree. Because of our

location, Galena is, and always was, an air fighte

Commissioner Bilbray and Commissioner Coyle,

into this FOL in smoky conditions, in the last

minutes of your flight, had an air emer cy c ‘
Galena would have been the only pave a&
safely capture your airplane in apout 0 miles. Now
imagine our land in seven mon f 'winter” Dark, 40 below,
and an ice pond.

Gentlemen, e first-hand experience from

living here. We ca vocally that the military

chose wisely when, t pion Air Base in Galena. We

know why the military not recommend our FOL for closure.
Our locatiocnWi i o all trans-Alaskan air travel.
Whethe ilian passenger airline crisis, national
emergen if Elmendorf goes to an alert status, Galena
has re for any American planes. Our air fighter
squadro have the safety net of Galena's paved airport and
barriers, and we wish the best and safest alternative for
our air forces. You have that now in Galena.

We have many stories of local people coming to the

rescue of airmen who have been caught out in our environment



or involved in accidents. I recently read a letter dated
January, 1962, which thanked our very own Patti Alder and
Dick Evans for saving five Americans in 50-below weather.
Before this time, their fathers were involved in another

rescue of a downed airman. Their history is our history.

We don't have any dollars to spend o
advertisements to woo you. We don't have t
people to stage demonstrations showing

effects the closure of this FOL will have esidents

of Galena. Even if we had the mon a he people, we would
not do so. We understand this 4 it decision. It
was a military decision which s ted lena, formerly known

as Louden. It caused o bal m ership to increase,
ing to stay and marry into
ers in the Air Force.
en your first aircraft landed and
ild the Air Force Base. They came
or bedding, and we took them into our homes
omed your presence ever since. As a result,
many people like me, an Alaskan native, who
proudly aim both heritages as our own.

Those warriors in the sky, these are our friends
and our family as well as yours. We want what is best for

them. As first Americans, we want to continue our tradition

of helping fellow Americans by having a safe refuge in



Galena, Alaska. The western and native worlds met in Galena
in 1942, and have blended to produce people who understand
that it takes a combination of both our worlds to give the
best service to our country in this land of 80 below.

Because of our unique people, the tribe, .the city,

as well as state and federal governments work cile
together in all matters to continue making lena
possible forward operating location the it Sta
America has.

Honorable Commission Member e thank you for
your time and consideration to 'S status. And we

hope that you've found we've'do credible job in

ailed to us. We would
like to continue to ge ountry and are proud to be
doing our part in,d his nation.

Finally, we r gnize you are doing your duty in

serving this\gr country of ours. We know you have some

hard d front of you, and we do not envy you your
task. ute you for doing a difficult and odious job,
and wish only the best for America. Thank you.
ACTING CHAIRMAN COYLE: Thank you, Mr. Wesley. Mr.
Yoder?

MR. YODER: We'd like to focus a little bit on

what we understand are the numbers from the final selection

criteria from the DOD BRAC process, and I want to refer you



to the map. I realize if I get up there, I'm going to lose
the microphone, but I hope you can see that it comes out to
here. Fairbanks, Anchorage, King Salmon here, and Galena's
here. 1In August of 2003, less than two years ago, there was

an interception of a Russian bear just south of Ga and

that's where the end of the string is. There
alert deployment in 2004, of August, that h
sitting on the tarmac in Galena ready fozx an

I put the dot out there whetre th in ception
took place for the purpose of showlng that the distance
from Eielson and the distance o} en f to that
particular point are equal.

There was
hearing, when we fi

the BRAC 1list,

t

- 1f Galena were to

the dis ce from Elmendorf. King Salmon, then, of course,
is much farther south and, again, we need to understand the
distances we are talking about.

To fly from Elmendorf or Eielson out to that

location would be similar to starting in New York City,



flying across New Jersey, across Pennsylvania, across Ohio,
and going to Indianapolis. Of course, when you get to
Indianapolis, you're out in the middle of the water and
there's no landing sites. If you got as far as Pittsburg,

you're where Galena is, and the rest of the time, 're

flying over area that is -- that is not covered

So I think Commissioners Bilbray a
chance to see the distances involved, ' want to
make it real clear so the BRAC under
Commission understands, that the st es welre talking
about are huge, and that movi d h this process,
you just have to be clear that it's not -- that Eielson is
not a substitution. ] ther missions, it's
could have some rea he Air Force and to the
military, but it to get you closer to that area

out there wher
ivilege of going up and looking in
hat are still on the base in Galena. And
upstairss i building is a map that the airmen kept very
car i the Cold War days. There are 70 different
spots o he map where they intercepted Russian aircraft
during the Cold War. And this one here, of course, is much
later but there are others that have been later. But I just
wanted to make sure you understand that.

That is the northern border of the United States,



and again, Alaska has more miles of coastline than the rest
of the United States put together, so you're talking about a
huge area up there. We don't go as far south as King
Salmon; we would not be protecting that part. But if you're

talking about protecting the northern part of Alas and the

United States, that's where it's at.

That also gives you pause when yo
consider the safety implications. One yo n two
things is land and airspace. We hav ad ri in Galena
because of the upcoming F-22s whe t were/trying to look
for air space and their envir e;N t statement on
where they would be flying and ing maneuvers, and some of
that area is over Galen

There are wide n ces out there. As you
travel from Anchora a

, 1t's 300 miles. During

that time, youlwill not oss a freeway, you will not cross

a paved coun d, u will not find another paved
alrports paved airports I've marked in a little bit
of There is Kotzebue, which is way up in the
sou to the north. There is Nome that's on the end of the
Seward insula, Bethel. These are small commercial
airfields made for 737s. The longest one is about 6,000
feet and the others are shorter.

So if you are in the area being mentioned, the 93

million square miles, the state of Nevada -- I'm sorry,



acres. I'm sorry, not sguare miles, square acres. Nevada,
by contrast, is 70,000 square acres and not a piece of
pavement anywhere not on a road, not on an airport, no
place. That's the size of the area you're talking about.

We feel like it's a serious safety issue

consider sending people from either Eielson or out
into that area, to have 300 miles to return
asphalt to land on. Galena has a functi

support system for aircraft to come in the

a oblem/-- even at

barriers. If a plane comes in wi
your Fairbanks hearing when t rs asked General

Gamble about this, he indicated

four aircraft saved at G

the cost of losing a pilot out in this
they're traveling out there, it's mountains;
, it's cold.

So you find yourself out there in the middle of
this area, if you were to come down, you know -- yes, they
have beacons to find you, but it's going to take some time
and the terrain is very, very rough and hard to get to. So

you're talking about some very remote areas and there's not



many options.

So if you have an electrical problem, you have a
hydraulic problem, the one thing that a pilot wants to do is
get down just as fast as he can because you don't have much
time before you're out of control, and you can't control an
aircraft with no hydraulics. So we think that £ safety

standpoint, that would be necessary.

Now we do understand that it' os le have
this as an alternate airport and keepfit u o} ndards for
€ base to the

the language that allow ACAF or NORAD,

catching aircraft without having e

standards of deploying aircra .N two different

things. And what we'd really 11 to e 1s something in
ndorf,

whoever's going to 1 decision, that they can

determine a level t would be less than 25

percent of the total co you're spending now. It would

still give t safety net but without the option for
hat's a decision that should be made at
tha he people that are flying, the people that are
inv ed out there.

Galena does have the capacity to a serve as an
alternate staging or landing site when there's a natural
disaster, disruptions or even terrorist acts on either of

the other two bases. So again -- you know, the last big

earthquake in Anchorage was in 1964. Another one of those,



if that were to disrupt the air base in -- in Elmendorf,
Galena would be a good option for them to be able to stage
at. You also have Eielson. Again, any of those natural
disasters or so on.

And the other thing to consider here is

Galena has some of the best flying weather aro ou
are in Anchorage, you can have storms. King Salmo

stormy area. In Galena, we have very c r the We
have less ice and fog than Fairbanks,# and th s another

thing to consider.
I'll also like to t o u efly about

economic impact, and I want to e you two scenarios.

Scenario number one 1is he base closes and there's no

redevelopment. If a according to the census,
there's 337 peopl oye Galena according to the last

census, which is not wve many. But 30 percent of those

would be a losg of employment either because of --

the s 44 people. The City, through this

coo i reement that Dean mentioned with the school,
has 45 to 50 people working there. The airport --
and again, I want to emphasize that if the base were to
close and there was no work with the state and the Air Force
to keep the airport at ready, they would go from eight

people down to two.

Because the standard for Alaska commercial



airports of that type, a non-certified airport is hard-
packed snow in the winter. So you end up with simply a
snow-packed base and that's not an alternative landing site.
So the base -- we'd lose people at the airport.

BLM firefighters, as he mentioned, there's 15 all

summer. In this area, you need to understand

percent of the people in the subregion -- w ,000
mentioned in your July 19th hearing, that's egion.
Seventy percent of those people, accofding census,
are living below what is minimum ge ges. nd also they
don't work a full year, so yo et in bout a very small
percentage of people. One of t thin they count on is

this BLM firefighting a takin hat away as well.

I did tal They have a mutual aid
agreement with t Alaska. They fight fires on
military propetty. The itary supplies them with the

utilities spa on that air base. They say it would

cost t a year just to upgrade that. As soon as

the, ann ent came out about the BRAC closure, they
immedi started talking about moving their operation to
Fairban to get it -- because of the expense, so you have
that federal agency that's already considering making a move
unless there is some kind of operational funds there that
will assist them in keeping their operations in Galena,

which would mean more economic impact.



Under the other economic impact, scenario B, or 2,
would be that there would be redevelopment. It would
probably be through the ways we've already started, but it
would also include partnerships with people like BLM. And I

think it would also necessarily include keeping the.runway

option, as I said, at the safety status, not nete ly at
the deployment status. But if that were dome,
give us funds to start working on a pla o pt BLM
there, to supply them and do what th nee or eir

operations.

Coast Guard was mai e} g 1t there -- when

they had big, high-seas operati th came into Galena

for refueling and for st
high seas. When th i ] anges, they change their
patterns. But ne at is another thing that we

would continue to help wi and would have that base

Fish and Wildlife Service is leasing

space now and would need space as well. So we

and “wi te agencies, and would continue our vocational

Last year we had about 85 students in a boarding
school operation. We also had about 75 students go through
a vocational training program. We are post-secondary

certified in five disciplines, and we're working hard to



expand that program to provide educational opportunities
even past high school for students in rural Alaska.

The final thing that I would mention is the
environmental compliance is ongoing. In the 1940s, the way

you brought fuel to Galena for all of the operation

that you rafted barrels in Fairbanks and floatec down
the river. The high flood in 1944 spread b
many acres, and much of that has been c ne

In Galena, there were some £pi1ill rve on a

technical project team that has bgen ing with the Air

Force and their contractors t i that” There's a

couple of large hydrocarbon that they're now working
on with active remediati rough soil vapor extraction,

through air injectio nd me her methods to try to get
those plumes to . e's a smaller TCE plume that

at this point in time, 're not sure what's going to

happen to, see to be rather benign and not moving
e other issue, where we're at.

one of the things that we think that is

abs tely essential is that that cleanup process continue.
It's pr bly going to take several years, so I guess our
bottom line here is that we feel like that, as the safety
net, the Air Force -- or the Commission needs to identify

the need for safety and that we have the -- to go forward to

negotiate with the Air Force to make sure that we can



maintain the level that they need, and also that we have
enough time to work on redeployment.
We don't have large people, large corporations

waiting in the wings that are ready to move in and help us

out. This is something that we're going to have t o from
a grassroots standpoint, and we would apprecia p we
can get from the Commission on that. T k .

ACTING CHAIRMAN COYLE: Th N uch, Mr.
Yoder. Any questions? Commissioner sen.

COMMISSIONER HANSEN: a ec e your testimony

and appreciate you coming here.

You know, in med Services Committee, when we
set the budget, we

The crossover me the Intelligence Committee,

t do you see as the threat that it is necessary to
keep this base open -- or keep this facility open?

MR. YODER: Let me be real blunt in that I don't
know that I can measure that.

I am very aware in the Cold War, Galena was a high



-- there was a high threat from intrusion from the Russian
aircraft. Now, that -- and if you look at the map, we're
talking about between the 62nd parallel north and the 68th
parallel north, and that seems to be the band where Galena
was, had their main impact.

Right now, the threat has moved down .o

between the 30th and the 40th parallel fromgAfghan A

North Korea, Iran, Irag, so we certainl

nd
guess I would leave it to the milita ol as whether
it's a three or what level of threat is, but it's
certainly not -- it's certain a o the war on

not u
terrorism. It's not equal to t threats of the lower
areas.
COMMISSIO HA N: o a lot of bush pilots use
that area?
MR. ODER:

ONER HANSEN: So basically the traffic, it

ots going through; is that right? Is there
a chart e going in there?
YODER: We have regularly scheduled aircraft
that ar n there. That's two scheduled carriers carrying
passengers, and they're in there twice a day to three times
a day --

COMMISSIONER HANSEN: What are they, RJ -- or

regional jets, little stuff?



MR. YODER: They're turboprops. One of them is a
Beechcraft 1900, carries 18 passengers, and it's in there
twice a day from Anchorage, twice a day from Fairbanks.
There's also some twin-engine aircraft, smaller twin

engines. There's also a larger cargo aircraft that!

there twice a week.

COMMISSIONER HANSEN: I noticed i

reports that we have in front of us tha heated
by -- what, is it the --

MR. YODER: The Air For m ains/a central
heating plant. They use abou a a lion gallons of
diesel a year to operate their tral /heating plant. The
Air Force also buys all eir electricity from the City

of Galena. We operate“th ow plant and we sell them
electricity.

One of our re concerns is that a -- 1is for the

City and s istrict to try to pick up that additional
cost i would be very difficult. It would be a
lon evelopment process for us to be able to take
tha . As we -- as Dean mentioned, we are looking at a
real sm nuclear power plant that would provide -- would
cut the utility cost in half for both heat, electric, and
water and sewer. Through privatization, we can cut those

costs in half of operations. But that's kind of where we're

headed.



COMMISSIONER HANSEN: What percent of the people
that live there are native Alaskans?

MR. YODER: Fifty-five percent. 1In our village
and the region, it's higher.

COMMISSIONER HANSEN: Have you thought 'm sure

you're way ahead of me. I know the Bureau of
has provisions for things such as heat.
applied to those folks for it? I used
over that in another life, so I'm pr
MR. DEAN: Well, we hav to A initially,
and they have yet to come over e to Galena and
look at the situation.
COMMISSIONER robably have one of the
MR. DE
There's nothing as powerful
as the Chai the Appropriations Committee. You may
want t some prayerful thought.
DEAN: Thank you, sir. We shall.
MMISSIONER HANSEN: There may be a way if this
goes do I was just curious when it came out. You
already alluded to another point, and that was the -- as I
understand it, Elmendorf is one of the candidates to get the

new F-22s that's starting to now roll off. Of course, it

cruises at supersonic, which about doubles the speed it's



going to cover, so probably cuts in half those hours.

I would be more concerned about Eielson going into
a cold situation. We went in and visited Eielson, and it
seemed like a fantastic base, and I don't know of anywhere
in the world that you have a better training range_than you
have at Eielson. And also it's really a very,

base, and

that will be guite a discussion when dve ‘ge o) t point.
And I'm sure -- they ha a what, A-10s and F-
16s in there. Do they stop t ugh le on occasion?

MR. DEAN: The A-106s? 'm n sure, sir. What we

do look at is that, sho elson ose, you still have the
capacity to land je hould you close Galena, that
Do you pick up some of those
Do they come through there?
Yes, they -- mainly whenever they're
us, they deploy out here. As I said, in August
they had them there for a month, and at one time,
there w F-15s sitting on our tarmac on alert status at
one time.

COMMISSIONER HANSEN: I guess my point is, it's

not just for the possibility of a Russian bear -- which

isn't a big threat anymore, but it's always nice to have an



alternative place to put down if you're experiencing any
trouble.
MR. YODER: Absolutely.

COMMISSIONER HANSEN: And I guess that makes a

pretty good facility for that.

MR. YODER: That is really key.

COMMISSIONER HANSEN: Thank you very muc

ACTING CHAIRMAN COYLE: Mr. Bi ra Co ssioner
Gehman? x

COMMISSIONER GEHMAN: Thank u very much for
helping us out and traveling ong vy talk to us. I
appreciate it very much.

First of all, derstanding is that the Galena

op Yy

Airport is on state-

ed ; 1t's not Air Force --
it's not Air For
's correct. All the buildings are
owned by tHewAi all the land is owned by the state.

IONER GEHMAN: Right. And now there are --

MR. YODER: Yes.

COMMISSIONER GEHMAN: The reason I'm getting at
this, of course, is that we are an infrastructure and real
estate commission. TIf there's no Air Force property here,

then I'm not exactly sure what we're talking about. The



contract, as I -- based on information that's been presented
to us, is a multi-year contract which is renewed annually.
MR. YODER: Yes.
COMMISSIONER GEHMAN: And the contract can be
terminated at any time?

MR. YODER: I believe that's true.

COMMISSIONER GEHMAN: Okay. Well# we ar a
contracting commission either. And if A For wants
to not reissue the contract, they canfeith do or not do

' n the

it as they see fit. We're not --_.we ot i

contracting business, so I'm ing i out exactly
where we are here.
For myself, Q litary man, I make a

distinction between

we learned ‘1 grade, that distance equals rate times the
substitute a fighter sitting at Fairbanks
for.,a £ sitting out of Galena. Sorry, you can't

cha x T. However, you can change -- you can change
the for a or you can change the algorithm into which you
would say, based on my analysis of the situation, I accept
the risk of a fighter on alert sitting at Fairbanks rather
than Galena, but you can't tell me that a fighter sitting at

Fairbanks is going to get there, you know, just as well. I



don't care what kind of a fighter it is, so I make that
distinction. It's important to me when I decide how to vote
on that this.

You mentioned a lot of people that use this

airport -- Bureau of Land Management, Coast Guard, ou went

on and on. And is it possible that some of thesge

might, in the future, have to stop relying the A orce
paying their way and they might have to ar ayi user
fees or something like that? x

at! e

MR. YODER: Yes, I do think s true. And
M

that's a discussion I did hav h ittle bit

because, as I said, I got rumor ithin two or three days

after the July 19th deci that they had been talking to

the people in Fairb ocating, and that was a
real concern to

And gso I talk -- I spoke with them, and they

feel like getting quite a bit of services. We would
if they're going to become a partner and
there w edevelopment going on with the State of Alaska
own the land and the City of Galena working on some of
the oth facilities, we would want a partnership where they
help pay part of the overall freight; otherwise, we can't
afford to be giving free stuff to the federal government.

COMMISSIONER GEHMAN: Okay. Thank you very much.

I appreciate your presentation. It's been very helpful.



ACTING CHAIRMAN COYLE: Gentlemen, thank you very
much. I don't think we have any other questions.

I want to thank you for the kindness and
hospitality that you showed Commissioner Bilbray and I when
we visited, and I want to thank you for coming all is way
again today. We appreciate it very much.

And we will take the Colorado delegation A

please.

STATE OF COLORADO

ACTING CHAIRMAN COY : M R iguez and
today.

gentlemen, I want to thank you vy mu for being here

First mat of si s, we need to ask you all
to stand and take. t th required by the BRAC statute.
COMMISSIONER N: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Please raise rig hands.

ses are sworn.)
ING CHAIRMAN COYLE: Senator Allard, I think

you lead for this delegation, so you can conduct it

SENATOR ALLARD: Well, thank you, Mr. Chairman.
And if it's appropriate, I'd ask unanimous consent that our
full statements be made a part of the record.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COYLE: Without objection, so



ordered.

SENATOR ALLARD: Okay. Again, thank you, Mr.

Chairman.

Let me begin by first introducing our state
delegation. I'm Senator Wayne Allard, the Senior ator
from Colorado. Also here on behalf of Colorad od

friend and colleague in the Senate, Ken Sal
State of Colorado's Governor, and, I mi
friend of mine, Bill Owens. There isfthe i t of the
Denver City Council, Miss Rosemary Ro guez;sand the

president of the Metro Denver amb of mmerce, Mr. Joe

Blake.

Chairman, and your
distinguished colle opportunity to share
Colorado's persp ding the Commission's July 19th
vote to add the Denver ance & Accounting Service to the
DFAS sites ‘t idered for closure.

irman, I was deeply troubled after reading
e Commission's desire for fairness, and

recogni your need for additional analysis. However, I
strongly disagree with the concept of closing the Denver
DFAS. I believe this is the wrong course of action and
could greatly endanger the Department of Defense's financial

well being.



From responses to questions posed to the
Department of Defense, I have gained a greater appreciation
for the keen, business-minded and farsighted approach of the
Department of Defense's DFAS recommendation. It is an

approach that balanced business, operational and fagcilities

considerations to develop what the Department of
stated is the optimal business and faciliti
DFAS. Further, I believe the recommend
best-value results that should be reff#eshi
taxpayer.

As that recommendati e in o the Denver

DFAS, I notice the following: ber e, Denver DFAS 1is

ranked number one in mi valu which by law, the

Department of Defen its baseline for all
recommendations.

Number two, D er DFAS is one of five DFAS

locations. Remaining sites are field

operati ns without the magnitude of depth, skill

And three, in workforce size, Denver DFAS is third
among five central operating locations exceeded by only
Indianapolis and Columbus, and FORA optimization has
consistently demonstrated that Denver is one of the sites to

be retained.



Our review of the operating cost data as shown in
the COBRA tools suggest Buckley Annex is an efficient and
inexpensive location with $1.2 million in annual operating
costs. Movement of the DFAS personnel and other personnel

currently operated at Buckley Annex would incur additional

movement costs and would likely experience highé
and sustainment costs as well as potential w
construction costs. These facts sugges av S g
from a Buckley Annex closure would befmini a est, and
may not likely lead to cost effecgive ernatives.
The following are s N that I think are
The

important for your consideratio

acility in which

Denver DFAS is housed ig =d by the Department of Defense

and has a secure or rimeter. It meets the
force protection i for the Department, and does
not require additional enditures for a lease.
Denver DFAS is housed and is ready to
receiv 1 workload and personnel without further
renovat facility improvements. No new military
con i funding would be necessary. The Coloradans who
work at nver DFAS are well trained, well educated, and
among the best in the business.

Mr. Chairman, the City of Denver is all too

familiar with the BRAC process. In the last BRAC round

alone, Fitzsimmons Army Medical Center and Lowry Air Force



Base were closed. Thousands of jobs were lost and it took
years to recover. Indeed, one of the reasons --

Let me just stop and say here that we must also
look beyond the effects of past BRAC rounds on the Denver

area. The very concept of closing Denver DFAS, a central

operating location and a DFAS workhorse, while
smaller field operating locations is ill-co
business practice approach, and by desi

financial support to our national defénse

Now, the Denver DFAS fa

1i was recommended by
the Department of Defense for P t closure. I

believe this recommendation 1is

for the Departme
Mr. Chairman, it is clearly in the best interests

ver, the State of Colorado, the Department

ation's taxpayers, and most importantly the

2.2, milld oldiers, sailors, airmen and marines who depend

Thank you, Mr. Chairman, Commission members, for
hearing my concerns. I'd now like to introduce my colleague
on my left, Senator Ken Salazar.

SENATOR SALAZAR: Thank you, Senator Allard and

thank you members of the Commission for giving us the



courtesy of your time this afternoon to explain to you our
strong, strong commitment and support for the DFAS
facilities and for the recommendation of the Secretary of
Defense for the DFAS facility.

At the outset, let me just say that for to be

here today, in and of itself, will demonstrate
Commission the importance of this facility
Colorado and the City and County of Denv,
United States Senator, as a Democrat,s alon

Wayne Allard, a Republican, alonggwit epublican Governor,

and a good friend of mine, Bi al with the

President of City Council, r Denver, along with
-- I won't even say his great champion for

Colorado and for thi i Joe Blake from the Denver
Chamber of Comme

I state that because I think what this ought

to demonstra all jof you is that we spent a day coming
here t California just to make sure that you know
tha e of Colorado is committed, from the federal
lev as well as at the State level. So that this DFAS
facilit s recommended by the Secretary of Defense and
moves forward with the recommendation of the Secretary of
Defense.

Let me secondly say that with respect to this

particular facility, it is our view that we already have a



world class facility that was established to accomplish
exactly the purpose that is envisioned by the Secretary's
recommendation. I want to refer to the facts that, from our
point of view, underscore the importance of moving forward

with that recommendation.

The DFAS facility already exists.
the Buckley Annex, and I believe that the s
supporting facts for the Secretary's re
strong. His recommendation will res
efficiency for DFAS. That means mean greater
savings for the clients that It also

means that we are going to save dollars by moving

forward with that recom ion.

The Base o} alignment Act makes it very

clear that the figxs important criterion in

determining whether to se or realign a facility has to do

with the £ itary value. The facts for Denver

DFAS wi to this particular criterion are indeed

the Secretary of Defense initially ranked
the Den DFAS operation as third for military value among
the country's 26 DFAS activities and organizations. Since

then, additional analysis within DOD moved Denver DFAS from

third to first in military value. That's a very important

fact that we all ought consider as you move forward with



your decision. The question in all of our minds might be,
Well, why is it that DFAS at Buckley has that top ranking
with respect to military value? I believe that the
following are the key facts.

First of all, there is a very strong work

that will support the functions of DFAS, and Joé& ill
speak about that in more detail in a few segon
Secondly, the fact that DenversDFA s already

located on a DOD facility, that meangéno p er has to be

acquired and the cost of moving ferwa ith e DFAS as
configured at this facility, c al dy owned by DOD,
which already has a controlled imeter, i1s one of the

great efficiencies to be eved re.

And third ion of the facility. The
facility itself cted to have -- to be able to

provide these kinds of vices, and it's in the kind of

condition 1 allow the expansion to occur without
signifi ional cost to the taxpayers.

Commissioners, it seems to me that the only way to
und alue the DFAS conclusion for its military value would
be to t the unusual step -- and I call it "the unusual
step" -- of changing the military wvalue calculus that the
Pentagon and the joint cross-service working group have

spent nearly two years developing.

Allow me to address that specific concern, which I



believe some members of the Commission and staff have
raised.

That concern, as I have understood it, would talk
about the relatively higher locality costs of some major

metropolitan areas with the concept being the highe

metropolitan costs might limit some of the savi
DFAS consolidation. 1I'd like to note some
respect to that concern that I hope tha
keeps in mind as it moves forward wi its

The first is that DFAS S eady made it clear

to this Commission and to the r nt at its job

requirements are such that the ters,of excellence need to

rea. So the fact that

the requirements th ooked at for these jobs are

held by the peopl i places like the metropolitan
area of Denver|is somethirilg the Commission should keep in

mind.

y, 1in a letter that was sent to Senator
Lugar, lleague in the United States Senate, the
Dir DFAS stated that the efficiencies created by the
Secreta s recommendations are good ones and can result in
even greater savings than are already estimated by the 2005
BRAC estimate.

And finally, the necessary employment makeup of

DFAS in the three centers for excellence proposed by the



Secretary of Defense will, by necessity, be more highly
concentrated in personnel at the higher end of the
government GS scales, and that's because of the accounting
functions and the other financial functions that will be
formed by DFAS staff.

This final point is a critical one,

hope the Commission keeps in mind as you mo

your decision. I'd also like to point o t
located in a very low-cost facility. # Its ua perating
cost is only $1.2 million. And Ic¢kno s 'youshave dealt

with all of the different faciditie ha ou've looked at

around the country, when you“lo at am operating cost of

$1.2 million, it's a ve ry sm operating cost. I

think that's one of s that we're looking at a
facility here th highly efficient.
Finally, I like to simply summarize that the

facts of the tary's decision for Denver DFAS, in my

view a iew of my colleagues are very, very strong.
First, DFAS isgs first in military value. It is not
six or twenty-sixth. It is first, number one.
Secondly, the best analysis demonstrates that the
location of the consolidated center in Denver will bring
about the increased efficiencies and savings that are, one,
important to the clients that are served by DFAS -- that's

our soldiers, the men and women who make our nation strong.



And secondly, that it will result in savings to the
taxpayers and to the Department of Defense.
So for all those reasons, it is my hope as a

United States Senator that this Commission move forward with

Defense with respect to the consolidated DFAS Cén
Denver, Colorado.

With that, I will turn it ove o good, friend,
Councilwoman and President of the De e& cil,
Rosemary Rodriguez.

COUNCILWOMAN RODRI& k You, Senator

n
Salazar, and thank you, Mr. -7 Acting Chairman

alzman
Coyle for wvisiting Denv t wee We arranged for it to
rain for the third S er
eat anything that the previous
interest of your time. I've sat

oon listening to this. It's been a
I'm not conceding any of their points. I

On behalf of the residents of Aurora and Denver,
Colorado, I appreciate this opportunity. Denver DFAS plays
an important role in our community. Its 1746 employees not
only live and work in our community, they are our friends

and our neighbors. They play in our parks, their children



attend our schools, they attend and participate in our

cultural activities. We value them and their contributions.
Denver DFAS is the gem that provides significant

military value. The Denver area's highly motivated and

highly educated workforce is a tremendous asset to_the

success of the Denver DFAS. And these highly t#sa
professionals provide a wonderful pool fromgwhich DEZ
or

select workers.

Our region has a proud histéry o g with the
country's military. The former Lewry r Force Base -- and
parenthetically, I wouldn't b e t r Lowry. My

e, bu
father, who was from Kansas, e mother, who was from

southern Colorado, and am today, President of the

Denver City Council tzsimmons Army Medical
Center played im in protecting our country over

the years.

ition . to its important service as an Air

Air Force Base was the first home of the
United Air Force Academy. Fitzsimmons was the one of
mostind nt Army medical facilities in our country.

While b of these facilities have now closed, Buckley Air
Force Base remains our country's newest Air Force Base and
plays an invaluable role in our defense, particularly as the
Air Force Mission in space is enhanced.

But as you consider where consolidated DFAS



facilities should be placed, please remember that both Lowry
and Fitzsimmons were closed in the last two base closure
rounds. Our sacrifices to the BRAC process have exceeded
those of most American communities. While the reuse of most

facilities is among the most successful BRAC transi

stories, it wasn't without an incredible amoun
the governments and residents of our two co
and Aurora. We are very proud of our r
we have no desire to go through it again. expense
and trauma have taken a toll on o c unities.

Denver DFAS should remain en our communities
are not placed in the positi needing to undertake both

on of base closure for the

tionally, with our current
unemployment rate, o , the last thing we need is

for these employees to e their jobs. Thank you very much

for your con tion of my comments and your service today
and th is process.

conclusion and on behalf of the people of

Den and Aurora, we urge you to retain and enhance the
DFAS mi on in Denver both to benefit the accomplishment of
its mission and in recognition of what our communities have
already contributed to a more efficient military through the

closure of Lowry and Fitzsimmons.

SENATOR ALLARD: I'll introduce Joe Blake, our



Denver Metro Chamber of Commerce President.

PRESIDENT BLAKE: Thank you very much, Senator
Allard. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and thank you, Members of
the Commission, for this opportunity to speak to you and for
the unified support about which you've heard so mu
already.

Mr. Chairman, I'd also like to ju say

personally, thank you again for the tim ha ou

Commissioner Newton took on Thursday #£o be with out for a
site visit at the DFAS Denver sit eant/a lot to the
people and it meant a lot to i w are so proud of

this facility.

On behalf of 's and Colorado's business

leadership, we appre€¢i k of the Commission, and

we're pleased to e rtunity to join Senators Wayne
Allard and Ken| Salazar resenting the entire Colorado
congressiona ion, along with Governor Bill Owens and

ident Rosemary Rodriguez, to discuss the
Defense “Fi ce & Accounting Service site in Denver, which
is, located at Buckley Air Force Annex.

I'm Joe Blake, President and CEO of the Denver
Metro Chamber of Commerce, and I'm speaking today on behalf
of our partners at the Aurora Chamber of Commerce. One of
the universal themes you're hearing throughout our

presentation is unified support, whether that's from the



public sector or the private sector. And we're all grateful
to have this opportunity to tell you about that support, and
more importantly, to convey our unified support for this
facility.

The Denver DFAS location is the largest pa

in the world with 1400 DFAS personnel and appro
Air Reserve Personnel Center jobs. Current
approximately 1,746 total jobs at this site. at per
the 2005 BRAC recommendations, the ARPC ma ligned to

Randolph Air Force Base in Texas. Bu e economic impact

of this site is $150 million r w s and purchasing.

Senator Salazar has said

million, do you see
have with the De
ocated on the Buckley Air Force

e former Lowry Air Force Base site.
As ar e 1991 and 1995 BRAC recommendations, Lowry
cloged 4 along with Fitzsimmons Army Medical, which
clo i . This resulted in a total loss of 8,000
jobs. 600,000 square foot, 73-acre Buckley Annex Site
has been owned by the Department of Defense since 1976. It
was built for this specific purpose and this specific

mission.

Currently, approximately 330,000 to 400,000 of



vacant office space is available to be developed.

Additional space may be developed and developable if the
ARPC is realigned to Randolph Air Force Base. We, as a
delegation, see that as an efficient opportunity for the

expansion of the DFAS site in Denver.

The economic impact of Buckley Air Fofg
considerable. Already it has an annual impact
range communities of $1.2 billion a years. th
Denver communities along Denver's central th-south
corridor.

We appreciate the Commiss 's fficult role in

reevaluating or evaluating mili y ingtallations. We

understand that the Dep t of fense has conducted its
own assessment of t FA 1 and provided their findings
and recommendations ou ! he criteria for the DOD
findings are integrate tween military value and other

consideratio
know, Denver ranks number one in the DOD
analysi cenario results for military value. Please
not e military value model included in the May DOD
report ked Denver DFAS as number three; however, that
model contained an error in calculation. The corrected,
updated version, which has been submitted to the Commission

by DOD, ranks Denver DFAS as number one. The average

military value prior to optimization was .625 with the 26



locations analyzed. DFAS Denver's value a .856.

We understand that your process and
recommendations will not be based solely on DOD findings and
that you will investigate the results of all 26 DFAS sites

in a universal manner, and that is exactly the reageon we're

here today. Aside from the DOD ranking, I would
highlight additional advantages to the Denv D
First, unified community suppo ion to

our congressional delegation led by nato ay Allard and

Senator Ken Salazar, the public a o) ate sector of the

Denver metro community are uni su rt, not only of

maintaining this great cente e also encouraged by
the opportunities to ex n the
I mention ar r t I'm here representing

Colorado's business er . The political and

jurisdictional| leaders also working and partnering with

a collective it in support of the DFAS Denver facility.

Col do Governor Bill Owens. Not only are they working
together, they are coordinating with the private sector and
regional partners as well. This has to be regional
cooperation at its best.

Commissioner Coyle, you had the opportunity last

Thursday to learn about that support in the discussion led



by Aurora Chamber of Commerce President Kevin Hogan. It
included, I thought, a very special testimony by the
homeowners' association in Lowry supporting the continuation

and expansion of this facility.

We all point out that we have the housing

education and transportation infrastructure in .pla

support this faculty in an unparalleled qualkity. of

special opportunities for expansion. I ho Co

proud of the remarkable record of achievem o} FAS
c

Denver. We have the ability and t itment and the

leadership to continue this migsion es ly and to build
on it should the other bases“al our sexpansion.
: > S led workforce.

S
nation for percentage of

d military government sectors of the

orado has the fourth largest space economy in
tion with 142,000 jobs as well as a strong financial
service ndustry. Additionally, the Denver Metro region is
the regional hub for federal employment, with 33,000
employees.

Here's a very quick view of our Denver Metro

profile. 1In short, what this says is that this population



in this region is steadily growing, and we have an economy
which is just now beginning to recover.

There are nine industry clusters in the Denver
Metro area. The numbers represent direct employment in the

industry. I will highlight financial services and

aerospace, as I think these may be of interest

relate to this Denver DFAS facility, and the' av

ila

a skilled workforce and proximity of milditar ommands to
our aerospace industry. \

Denver has a strong industr uster in the area
of financial services. We ra sev h of the 51
largest -- 50 largest Metro are for nancial services
industry cluster.

il

Here is moxe “de

ut the financial industry
employee force. evaluated in the DOD review
are hiring -- average amount of time measured
in terms o 1 vacancies from outside of DFAS and
local workforce pool. Denver DFAS ranked number
five i i at 10.8 days.

umber five, local Denver population workforce
pool. orado has the fourth largest aerospace economy in
the nation, with approximately 142,000 jobs related to this
industry cluster. I've included aerospace employment
information because of the strong connection to the

military. Colorado is home to four military commands: The



Air Force Space Command, the Army Space Command, the North
American Air Defense Command, NORAD, and the U.S. Northern
Command.

Military commands are the primary customers for

space-based development, acquisition and operation

space technology companies of all sizes. Again
considerations used to evaluate sites in theg’ DO - are
ability to hire and the local workforce . itionally,
proximity to military installations

This aerospace employme i rmatieon is provided

to demonstrate that a deep 1la o} ex s in the Denver

Metro area, and that Denver ersonnel are among their

piers in both financial rmed services.

advance for considering the DOD evaluation, the

unifie lorado community support for this facility, and

the highly skilled workforce available in the Denver Metro
region.
I believe that the high level of gquality that

supports the world's largest pay center with a distinguished



record of service is reflective of the fact that people are
highly motivated and productive when they can work in the
same place where they want to live and raise their families.
Indeed, the Denver Metro area and the Denver DFAS site

create that productive intersection.

Colorado's business leadership respect
requests that the BRAC Commission consider e
facility as a site suited to expand to om ate

consolidation and realignment of oth FA en S.

I thank you again, and ow myshonor to turn

this over to our Governor, Bi
GOVERNOR OWENS: u very much. And
Mr. Chairman and Members ittee, thank you for

I can only imagine how
ou've sat through, but I do
appreciate, as a citize nd as a governor, what you're

trying to is to make sure that we have as much

the homeland. I am a strong supporter of the
BRA t it is doing, even as the governor of a state
ears past, has seen some significant facilities
reduced and, in fact, closed.

You know, my role today is to be the closer in our
discussion and in our case. My father made his living

selling insurance. When he was young and when the insurance



industry was in its infancy, he actually sold insurance door
to door. He told me that one of the things he learned from
that experience was that when you've made the sale, quit
talking or you might end up buying it back. We're going to
leave about 22 or 23 minutes on that clock today hoping that
we made the sale.

Every community that's come beforg you h ked
about the importance of the particular il or se to
their economic livelihood, and we're #io di re than
anybody else. It would obviously.shav significant impact
on Colorado and on Denver. B t k t what you have

to consider most, as a commissi and,what we as Americans

also have to consider i t impact on the military?

ructure and the people that

I truly belie it's in the national interest to
keep this ' op for a very simple reason. The

Denver i facility is an accounting facility that

cou a simple reason. Colorado is a wonderful place
in whic o live, raise a family and work.

We know this: In case after case, if you talk to
enlisted people or officers who have served at Buckley or
Fort Carson or at Peterson or NORAD, time after time, I'm

told that when they retire, they want to come back to



Colorado to live. I'm told that they hope to get
transferred to Colorado when they're pulled out of some of
the bases and facilities we have.

We know that Colorado's a wonderful place to live

and that makes it easier to recruit the type of

professionals we'd want to have continue to wo

facility such as we have at the Buckley AnnegXx. do has

proven time after time that when people ve choigce, they
simply do want to live in our wonder st

Level Three, which is asmaj employer in
Colorado, a major new company a c ted six or eight

years ago, had to decide where im. the untry they wanted to

set up its headquarters y did poll of the people it

hoped to attract, high-=le neering personnel, people
who were active i o mputers, the professionals,

many of whom we would s to hope to keep in the accounting

field. do -- based on their recommendation,

Denver is where Level Three chose to set up its
world headquarters.

saw this recently when Boeing and Lockheed set
up the nt venture called United Launch Alliance to serve
NASA. Where did it choose to set up its headquarters?
Colorado. The reason is that, as you've heard, Colorado's

one of the best educated states in the country. We're third

in the country in terms of the number of college-degreed



individuals per thousand. We happen to have the most
technology workers per thousand of any state in the country.
We're ahead of Massachusetts, we're ahead of Texas, we're

ahead of California.

We have the most technology workers per thousand

of any state in the country. And our business €l

broad-based enough that it's a state that, think, going
to be successful in the future. The Co ra n £
Economic Development has consistently/rank Co ado as one

of the best places in the country4in ch to/do business.
Why is that important? " B us hen you have 1700

people already at the Fitzsimmo facility, and if you're

considering a place to merge or in fact collocate, I

t that place. We're hoping
We're hoping that, because
ings, because there's plenty of
ize, because it's already well

e Colorado's a place that, again, people

We're very proud of the job that Denver DFAS does.
We are very proud of the fact that the military ranks it
number one. We hope that you'll keep these factors in mind
when you make the difficult decisions that you are charged

with making.



Thank you again for what you're doing for all of
us through these sometimes probably less than exciting
hearings. We really do appreciate it. We'd be glad to

answer any questions, should you have any.

SENATOR ALLARD: Mr. Chairman, that concludes our

presentation. We thank the Commission for thei

attention.
ACTING CHAIRMAN COYLE: I thi th olo 10
delegation has set the record in a ea gs for the

11 6f ou
most concise presentation of any.. Le e sees1f there are
any questions.
COMMISSIONER GEHMA d I ree. Thank you very

much for traveling out and helping us see our way
through this.
As I thin are aware, the Commission

heard the DOD recommen on, which was essentially to

consolidat AS ganization from 30 centers in 26
differ ns down to three, and then that's what we
wer d with. And the rationale was, Well, we ran an
opt imi i model and this is how it came out. Well, in

us to peer into that process, we have to put
everything back on the table again, and that's how we got

here.

But as we evaluate -- we put the three on the



table so we could evaluate all 26 on an even playing field,
but from listening to you, your arguments, | would gather
that 1t the Commission were to look at the optimization

model which the department used, and I"m just -- 1°m hoping

that I"m reading your argument back to you.

considered such factors as whether or not we

if the facility is not too old, if i
and i1f the local demographics ca up t a first-class
local workforce and the facil} can ke’ on additional
work, we should consider t th epartment®s

recommendation is a g

Is that d t riteria that you -- that's
what I heard in your u ts. So if that is pretty close
to what yougcongider t e the algorithm for evaluating DFAS

sites, e, will look at the other 26 with the

ENATOR ALLARD: I think that's fair,
Commisei r. And that's all that we ask, that you give us
all the same fair consideration in that. But I do think we
have a real strong case.

I just reiterate again that Denver DFAS is ranked

number one in military wvalue, and I think that should have



considerable significance. I feel like they were fairly
objective about it, and obviously we're proud about what we
have in Denver, and we just wanted to share that with you
today.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COYLE: I understand tha

testimony today has been focused on DFAS. We

ARPC when we were out in Denver, Commission I.
They were pretty straightforward that t
value in moving to Texas.

When we asked the commander; think the way it

was put was, Yes, you could do f into this

category of, Yes, it's physical ossible to do it, but why

would you? It works whesl ere is considerable

synergism with DFAS; he same building and work
Do you have a ing more you want to add onto
that?

R OWENS: ©No, I'm going to jump in here

jus I'm from Texas, and I left there as soon as I
rea age of majority. (Laughter.)
SENATOR ALLARD: I don't have anything else. Any
comments from the Commission?

ACTING CHAIRMAN COYLE: I just wanted to ask, did
you have anything more you wanted to say about ARPC since

most of your testimony was focused on DFAS?



GOVERNOR OWENS: Well, we are proud --

ACTING CHAIRMAN COYLE: Oh, you guys already have
your lights on.

GOVERNOR OWENS: Let me just say that, you know,

we came here today in the delegation that was put together

by Senator Allard, and our focus today in this
to let you know how important DFAS is.

I don't know what reception youd've tten at other
places around the country on these very difficu hearings,
but I think what this shows is the un ity of support that

we have for the military's re men io ith respect to

Denver DFAS.

I personally know whether any of my

colleagues came her other issues. We were
told frankly that, i the jurisdiction of this

commission hearing to a ess other facilities. So I

personally co prepared to address issues with
respec items on the BRAC list.

ING CHAIRMAN COYLE: Thank you.

VERNOR OWENS: But it would be, I think, remiss
for me say that it is certainly something that we, as a
delegation, can take back and we will look at. And
hopefully, we can at least get a letter in to the Commission

with our studied views of the issue that you raise,

Commissioner.



ACTING CHAIRMAN COYLE: You'wve done a lot already,

and so I certainly don't want to add to your burden. But if

you have further thoughts on that in the next week -- that's
all we have -- that would be helpful.
I don't think we have anymore questions. o thank

you very much for your testimony today.
This concludes today's Regional Hegaring

Defense Base Closure and Realignment Commiss . ant to

thank all of the witnesses who testi £ c fornia and

Alaska and Colorado. And thank yoeu, se of/you who came
from especially long distance o ips. You've

brought to us today wvery though 1 and valuable

information, and I want ssure u that your statements

will be given caref on by all the Commission

members as we reach e

I algo want t ank all the elected officials and
community ave assisted us during our base
visits tion for this hearing. And in particular,
I want nk, again, the City of Monterey for their
ass ance in obtaining and setting up this fine site.

And finally I want to thank the citizens of the
communities that are represented here today that have
supported the members of our Armed Services for so many

years, making them feel welcome and valued in your towns and

communities. It's that spirit that makes America great.



This hearing is closed.

(End of record, 4:57 p.m.)



